

INDEPENDENT HEALTH ASSOCIATE HANDBOOK



Dear Associate:

Welcome to Independent Health! As a valuable member of our team, you play an important role in helping Independent Health achieve its mission, vision and values. Our mission is to provide health-related products and services that enable affordable access to quality health care; our vision is to be the recognized leader in customer engagement and delivering solutions that improve the health of the communities we serve; our values are passionate, caring, respectful, trustworthy, collaborative and accountable.

We take pride in our company's culture and comprehensive compensation and benefit package. We believe in treating each other with dignity and respect, while providing exceptional service to our internal and external customers and promoting an inclusive and collaborative environment.

Our organization's success is a reflection of our associates' dedication, teamwork and pride in their careers – all of which result in high quality work and exceptional customer service. Let's continue to work together to positively transform our organization and the health care industry.

Michael W. Cropp, M.D.

Me la Whay 40

President/CEO

Independent Health (IH) Associate Handbook

This handbook applies to associates of Independent Health Association and associates of certain affiliate organizations: Independent Health Corporation (IHC), Independent Health Foundation (IHF) and WNY Collaborative Management Services (WNYCMS) will be incorporated hereto by reference (hereinafter "the company"). This Associate Handbook is designed to introduce you to company practices, processes and benefits. However, if you have any questions, you are encouraged to review specific questions with your department leader, human resources business partner (HRBP) or human resources generalist.

The Associate Handbook is not a contract of employment and your employment can be terminated at any time for any reason since you are considered to be AN ASSOCIATE AT WILL. The company reserves the right to make employment decisions different from or contrary to the policies expressed in this handbook. This Associate Handbook also summarizes the current benefit plans offered by the company. If any questions arise regarding the implementation or interpretation of any benefit plan, the terms and conditions of the actual plan documents will dictate rather than the summaries contained in this handbook. The Associate Handbook (and other plan documents) are not contractual in nature and do not guarantee any continuation of benefits.

The information in this handbook supersedes and replaces all previously published handbook information and is current as of the date shown on the bottom of the page. The company also reserves the right to modify this handbook at any time and without notice. The most up-to-date version will be available electronically for all associates to view. Depending on the nature of the update, you may be notified through email that an updated version has been posted.



Congratulations! You have joined a company that is at the forefront of health care reform efforts locally, regionally and nationally. Through innovative programs and partnerships, we are taking the lead in developing a sustainable health care model to achieve the "quadruple aim" – better health, better care, lower costs and improved provider vitality.

Our innovative approach of engaging physicians as partners, implementing initiatives with community-minded results and focusing on the customer has greatly benefited this community. Our success is reflected in the numerous awards, honors and recognition we have received, including:

- Independent Health was recognized by J.D. Power as the second highest ranked health plan for member satisfaction in the New York region, according to J.D. Power's 2021 U.S. Member Health Plan Study. Independent Health was the highest ranked in Western New York.
- Independent Health was recognized by the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) as a 5-Star Medicare Advantage Plan for 2022. Independent Health was one of only seven health plans in the nation with multiple Medicare Advantage contracts to receive this prestigious designation for its entire Medicare Advantage product portfolio.
- Independent Health's Managed Medicaid plans have earned a 5-Star rating by the New York State Department of Health in its 2020-2021 Managed Care Regional Consumer Guide. Independent Health is the only Medicaid managed care plan in the Western Region with a 5-Star rating.
- Independent Health and its three affiliate companies, each were named among the "Best Companies to Work for in New York in 2021." Independent Health remains one of only five companies to be named "one of the best companies to work for" in New York State for 14 straight years as long as the "Best Companies" survey has been in existence. The Best Companies to Work for in New York State program, presented by the New York State Society for Human Resource Management.

A Great Place to Work

Our dedicated associates and positive workplace culture have led to Independent Health being consistently named as one of the Best Companies to Work for in New York State for over a decade. This honor is a testament to the outstanding culture Independent Health has fostered for more than 30 years — one that provides a positive work experience and outstanding products and services to our customers. Our consistent ranking as one of the Best Companies to Work for in New York State is a reflection of our commitment to our highly valued associates. Associate satisfaction is a top priority at Independent Health. We recognize our associates are our greatest asset, and we strive to ensure a culture that helps our associates reach their fullest potential.

In fact, the people of Independent Health have always been integral to the company's success. Over the years, Independent Health has attracted, retained and built an expert work force, and our team's passion and commitment to serving our customers and community continues to set us apart. Independent Health's associates have also made the company a great place to work by creating a friendly, energetic and supportive culture and positive work environment.

The reputation Independent Health has earned as a top-rated health solutions company is the result of

Independent Health.

more than three decades of hard work and a relentless devotion to excellence. Commitment to quality is fundamental to everything Independent Health does. It is this progressive spirit that has led to the company's long-term success.

Mission

We provide health-related products and services that enable affordable access to quality health care.

Vision

We will be the recognized leader in customer engagement and delivering solutions that improve the health of the communities we serve.

Values

We are...

Passionate – We love what we do

Caring – We support the well-being of others

Respectful – We are considerate and value individual differences

Trustworthy – We instill confidence through our character and competence

Collaborative - We work together to create solutions

Accountable – We deliver what we promise

Culture: The Key to Our Success

Since the company's founding in 1980, Independent Health's unique and positive culture has been the cornerstone of the company's success. In a world of constant change and increasing complexity, our culture has been the mainstay of our organization, enabling us to thrive in any environment. This success is reflected in the national recognition, top honors, awards and rankings Independent Health receives on a consistent basis.

Independent Health's culture is rooted in our core values. These are the values we identify as being central to consistently serving our customers with excellence; they are the heart and soul of our organization. Our values permeate everything we do and help ensure we meet our customers' needs and expectations in every interaction we have with them.

Independent Health's values are expressed, channeled and achieved through our associates. That's why we strive to hire people who share our values, who have a collaborative work style, and who exhibit exceptional character, quality and integrity. The spirit and passion of our associates is what has enabled Independent Health to be consistently rated one of the top health plans in the nation; this same spirit and passion will drive our future success.

Recognizing that people are our most important asset, Independent Health has identified associate satisfaction as a top priority. We have worked hard to make Independent Health a great place to work and, based on internal surveys, there is a high level of associate satisfaction in the company. High associate morale, in turn, translates to high customer satisfaction, as demonstrated by the high ratings we receive from our members, various organizations and national publications. One reason for the high

Independent Health.

level of associate satisfaction is that Independent Health consistently rewards and recognizes associates for their hard work, passion and accomplishments. Every year, the company celebrates associates Associate Appreciation events and at the Company Team Meeting. These events also provide an opportunity for associates to get to know each other better, which helps to instill teamwork and unity.

Independent Health is proud of our award-winning culture. Recognizing that our competitive advantage lies primarily in the dedication and creativity of our associates, we are committed to fostering a culture that creates a positive work environment for our associates and helps us continue to deliver the best possible experience for our customers.



TABLE OF CONTENTS

COMPANY INTRODUCTION	10
SECTION I: COMPANY POLICIES, PRACTICES AND PROCEDURES	15
Standards of Business Ethics	
The Code of Conduct and Ethics	
Reporting Procedures	
Compliance with Laws and Regulations	
Affordable Care Act (ACA)	
Center for Medicare and Medicaid (CMS)	
Fraud Laws and Whistleblower Rights and Protections	
Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA)	
Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act (HITECH)	
Confidentiality and Non-Disclosure	
Conflict of Interest	
Diversity/Inclusion	
Equal Employment Opportunity/Affirmative Action	
Discrimination and Harassment in the Workplace	
Sexual Harassment	
Proprietary Information	
Protected Health Information (PHI)	
Intellectual Property	
Acceptance of Gifts	
Anti-Retaliation	
Access to Associate Employment Files	25
Alternate Work Arrangements and Remote Work Requirements	24
Associate Counseling/Disciplinary Action	25
Associate Training Modules and Programs	26
New Hire Orientation & New Hire Compliance Training	
Annual Required Training	
Department-Specific Required Training Programs	
Other Training Opportunities	
Associates Use of Meeting Space	27
Attendance	28
Call-In Procedures	
Period of Consecutive Absence	
Automobile Usage	29
Business Communications	28
Electronic Bulletin Board (Etc. board)	
Inside IH	
Publications	
Business Conduct Rules	29
Cell Phone/ Personal Devices Usage	31
3-1-22	



Company-Provided Mobile Device and Usage	31
COVID-19 Vaccine Requirement	
Dress Code Guidelines - "Dress for Your Day" Philosophy	31
Drug Free Workplace and Alcohol Policy	32
Employment	33
Associate Status and Pay	
Categories of Employment	
Change of Employment Status	
Pay Day & Recording Hours Worked	
Deductions in Pay	
Taxable Fringe Benefits	
Hours of Work	
Overtime Hours of Work	
Termination of Employment	
Employment of Relatives and Close Personal Relations	
Facility Closings, Business Continuity and Remote Work Requirements	37
Job Postings Process and Criteria	37
Learning Center	39
Medical Emergencies	
No Solicitation/No Distribution	
Nonbusiness-Related Phone (Land Line/Cell) Usage	
Open Door Policy	
Parking	
Personal Hygiene	
Posting of Required Employment Notices	
Problem Resolution Procedure	
Security ID Cards	
Smoke/Tobacco Free Workplace	
Social Media	
Talent and Performance Management	
Wellness	
Workplace Health & Safety	45
Airborne Infectious Disease Exposure Prevention Plan	
Safety and Workplace Violence Prevention	
Workplace Standards	47
SECTION II: TOTAL REWARDS	
Compensation	48
Company Philosophy	
Administration	
Associate Bi-weekly Compensation	
Overtime pay	
Other types of pay	
Merit Increases	
3-1-22	



	Annual Scorecard Incentive Program
Pay [*]	Transparency
Benefits	50
Com	pany Philosophy
Whe	n You Have Questions
Com	pany Insurance (Medical, Dental, Vision Prescription, Life)
Eli	gibility Requirements
Fa	mily Status Changes
Life a	and Accidental Death and Dismemberment (AD&D) Insurance
Supp	lemental Life Insurance
Empl	oyee Assistance Program (EAP)
Flexil	ble Spending Accounts (FSA)
М	edical FSA
De	ependent Care FSA
Ac	doption Assistance FSA
Ado _l	ption Assistance Program
COB	RA
	ned Benefit Plan (Pension Plan)
	ned Contribution Plan (401(k) Retirement Savings Plan)
Educ	cation Assistance
	A Metro Advantage Program
	pany Merchandise
	ards and Recognition Programs
	e-Added Benefits
Volu	Inteering and Programs
SECTION	III: TIME OFF & LEAVES
Company	-Designated Paid Holidays55
Eligib	pility Requirements
Holid	lays on Saturdays and Sundays
Holid	lays Worked
Paid Time	e Off (PTO)
Eligib	pility
Accru	ual System
End o	of Year Carry Over
PTO	Balances and Usage
Requ	esting PTO
	rding PTO Usage
New	Hires
	York Paid Sick Leave (NYPSL) time
	ination of Employment
	sfer of Employment
	eaves of Absence and Benefits
	t Term Disability
3-1-22	



Long Term Disability Benefits During Medical Leaves of Absence Length of Absence and Returning to Work **Workers Compensation** Corporate Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA) Policy Corporate Paid Family Leave (PFL) Policy COVID-19 Leave Mandated Leaves/Absences from Work Blood/Bone Marrow Donation Leave **Emergency Responders** Jury Duty Military Leave of Absence New York COVID-19 Vaccine Leave **Rights of Nursing Mothers** Voting Time Off Witness Duty Other Types of Leaves Bereavement Leave Personal Leave of Absence

IN CONCLUSION	77
Exhibit I Fraud Laws and Whistleblower Rights and Protections	. 77
Exhibit II Privacy Laws and Consumer Rights and Protections	90



COMPANY INTRODUCTION

Independent Health began operations in 1980 as a Health Management Organization (HMO). Throughout its history, Independent Health has addressed the ever-changing needs of the community and our membership, while delivering top-notch quality and value.

Product Portfolio

Independent Health, a not-for-profit health plan headquartered in Buffalo, New York, serves nearly 400,000 members and provides innovative health care products and benefits designed to engage consumers in their health and well-being. Established in 1980, our comprehensive portfolio of progressive products includes HMO, POS, PPO and EPO products, Medicare and Medicaid plans, traditional indemnity insurance, individual and small group plans through the New York State of Health marketplace, consumer-directed plans and health savings accounts, plus coverage for self-funded employers. Our subsidiaries and affiliate companies include pharmacy benefit management, specialty pharmacy and the Independent Health Foundation.

Product highlights include:

- **FlexFit** Launched in 2003 as a way to give members the unique opportunity to choose a plan with benefits that fit their lifestyles.
- iDirect Our suite of consumer-directed health plan products first offered in 2005. Coupled with health savings accounts, iDirect empowers consumers to take charge of how their health care dollars are spent.
- **Empower** Unveiled in 2010 as the first product of its kind in New York state that rewards individuals who choose a healthier lifestyle with lower out-of-pocket costs.
- **Evolve**° An innovative plan introduced in 2011 as a way to reward members for taking an active role in their health. This high-deductible plan is unique because it includes incentives through FitWorks, a Web-based wellness program that promotes individual and group challenges, peer support tools and links to wellness programs and services.
- **First Choice** Designed to lower costs while encouraging members to become more engaged in their health care decisions. First Choice is the first plan in Western New York to offer the benefits of a self-funding platform with a coordinated delivery system from Catholic Health.
- Independent Health's Choice Plus® Introduced in 2013 as a consumer-directed health plan based on coordination of care through a tailored network of high-performing providers to achieve efficiencies in delivering quality care.
- Independent Health's Nutrition Benefit The first benefit of its kind in New York state, this option was introduced in 2014 to give members the opportunity to receive money-back rewards for buying fresh fruits and vegetables.
- Independent Health's Telemedicine Benefit New in 2015, this benefit provided through Teladoc® allows members to talk with a doctor anytime, anywhere by phone or online video 24 hours a day, 7 days a week for a low copay.



- **FitWorks**° Using our online wellness tool, we've enhanced our wellness offerings to meet the unique and individual needs of our employer groups. Launched in 2016, **FitWorks Rewards** is the first wellness solution in today's market that provides small group employers with the incentives they need to motivate their employees (this is also offered to individual plan members). We also offer **FitWorks Prime** to large group employers, offering a customizable program that can align with their overall health and wellness strategy.
- Independent Health has the largest Medicare Advantage plan membership in Western New York, based on the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) Western New York (WNY) enrollment data for 2015.

Expansion and Growth

Independent Health has augmented our highly successful insured product portfolio with services that employers and associates need to better manage their health care expenses.

- **Nova Healthcare Administrators** was acquired in 2003 as a subsidiary that administers customized, flexible self-funded benefit designs, including medical, dental and vision services that lead to better quality medical outcomes and sustainable health care cost reductions.
- Pharmacy Benefit Dimensions® (PBD) was established in 2005 to provide pharmacy benefit management services to employers that self-fund their prescription drug benefits separately from their medical plans. PBD is the 20th largest PBM in the country, serving nearly 500,000 members. Due to its continued growth, PBD became a wholly-owned subsidiary of Independent Health Corporation in 2014. Independent Health is the only health plan in Western New York with an in-house PBM function.
- **Reliance Rx**®, a specialty pharmacy company, was established in 2010 to oversee the management and distribution of specialty drugs to members of Independent Health and other payers with a focus on safety, efficacy and cost-effectiveness.
- WNY Collaborative Management Services[®], was established in 2021 to provide various administrative support to the WNY Coordinated Medical Care, PC in its role to simplify the complex health care needs for Independent Health members with multiple chronic conditions. WNY Collaborative Management Services provides experienced dedicated support staff, training and onboarding, workflow and process support and program performance reporting.

Community Wellness Initiatives

Independent Health proudly introduced the area's first consumer- and employer-focused wellness programs in 1989. Today, we have a dedicated focus on various worksite and community-based wellness programs across the region.

Independent Health Foundation

The Independent Health Foundation was established in 1992 to provide the support and resources the community needs to lead healthy lifestyles. Over the years, the Foundation has implemented programs 3-1-22



and initiatives that promote positive healthy changes in the community and empower individuals to become educated health care consumers. Some of the key initiatives include:

- Healthy Options® Buffalo, a program developed by the Independent Health Foundation in partnership with area restaurants and food trucks to provide healthy, low-fat, low-cholesterol menu items. Currently, more than 170 local restaurants and food trucks participate in this program.
- In 2006, the Independent Health Foundation created Good for the Neighborhood*, a regional program launched with the City of Buffalo and the City of Niagara Falls as a way to improve the health and wellness of thousands of people throughout Western New York's most-challenged communities. The initiative provides healthy living learning tools to assist people in managing their own health care more effectively and improving their overall health.
- The Fitness for Kids Challenge, a community-wide initiative introduced in 2008, aims to improve the health habits in youth to combat rising rates of obesity and Type 2 diabetes. The program works with area schools to increase their students' level of physical activity, improve their nutritional choices and promote the benefits of maintaining a healthy lifestyle.
- Soccer for Success® is a national after-school, youth development program that uses soccer, along with mentorship and nutrition education, as a way to engage kids in their health and reduce childhood obesity. In 2012, the Independent Health Foundation was one of 13 organizations in the United States to receive a sub-grant from the U.S. Soccer Foundation to help implement this program locally.

Partnerships with Physicians

Much of Independent Health's success has been built on the company's unique ability to forge strong relationships with local physicians. Independent Health is one of the few health plans in the U.S. with physicians in the leadership positions of president and CEO and board chairperson.

- In 2009, to address the issues of access, quality, and patient satisfaction at the primary care level, Independent Health piloted a new model of health care delivery, known as the Patient Centered Medical Home (PCMH). The goal of this innovative initiative is to provide patients with better access to health care services and more personalized care through a team approach. All 18 practices involved in the PCMH pilot program successfully achieved the highest recognition by the National Committee for Quality Assurance (NCQA).
- From PCMH, Independent Health created the Primary Care Investment Program (PCIP), which was ultimately branded The Primary Connection, to further improve affordability and quality of care; increase member, physician and staff satisfaction, and address the physician shortage in primary care. The Primary Connection builds on the success of PCMH by strengthening and reinforcing our relationships with our physician partners (primary and specialist), in particular the primary care physicians. Through the Primary Connection, Independent Health will further its efforts toward accomplishing the triple aim of better health, improved quality and lower cost.



Rising Cost and Complexity of Health Care

Throughout our company's history, we have been known in the community for providing outstanding service to both our members and providers. As the health care environment becomes more complex, consumers are in greater need of excellent customer service more than ever before.

In response to the rising cost of health care, Independent Health is improving quality and finding efficiencies and process improvements through numerous initiatives and associate engagement. Independent Health is passionate about reshaping the delivery of health care and combating the rising cost of health care in this community and, hopefully, the nation.



SECTION I: COMPANY POLICIES, PRACTICES AND PROCEDURES

Standards of Business Ethics

The company is committed to conducting its business in strict compliance with all applicable laws, rules and regulations; with honesty and integrity; and in accordance with the highest standards of business ethics. Everyone at the company shares the responsibility of ensuring that the company's business is conducted in a legal, honest and ethical manner.

The Code of Conduct and Ethics

The Code of Conduct and Ethics sets forth the principles that all associates, interns, consultants, vendors, leased associates, board members, directors and officers must adhere to and embrace. Each of us is required to act in an ethical manner in the performance of our duties and the Code of Conduct and Ethics illustrates the principles necessary to promote a professional and ethical environment. At the core of the Code of Conduct and Ethics is the expectation that all workforce members shall adhere to all federal and state laws, rules and regulations, and corporate policies and procedures in the performance of his or her job functions. Everyone should be familiar with the Code of Conduct and Ethics and incorporate the principles contained therein into their daily lives.

The company's 's Code of Conduct and Ethics and policies are an integral part of New Hire Orientation and Annual Awareness Compliance Training. The Code of Conduct and Ethics is distributed to all workforce members during New Hire Orientation, at the completion of Annual Awareness Compliance Training and is always available on the Inside IH landing page here. All associates must sign the Associate Agreement and Attestation after New Hire Orientation and annually thereafter, upon completion of Annual Awareness Compliance Training. This Associate Agreement and Attestation reiterates the associates' commitment to the company.

Reporting Procedures

Every associate has the responsibility of reporting any known or suspected violation of the company's Code of Conduct and Ethics or of any non-compliance with regulatory or legal requirements. If issues arise that you feel uncomfortable directly reporting to the Compliance Department, Human Resources, the Special Investigations Unit or any level of management, the company uses a third-party anonymous and confidential helpline.

This confidential and anonymous helpline operates 24/7/365 and can be accessed via two methods: 1-877-229-4916 or https://reportit.net. If you choose to report using the helpline, you will need the following information for the issue to be directed back to Independent Health for investigation (this information cannot be used to identify you): username: IHA; password: redshirt. Associate should also contact the confidential Fraud and Abuse Hotline at 1-800-665-1182 for issues related to member or provider fraud, waste or abuse (medical or prescription). Prompt reporting of a violation is in the best interest of all associates. Notifications will be held in the strictest of confidence to the extent permitted by legal or regulatory requirements and no associate will suffer any form of retaliation if they were not a knowing participant in the violation. The company maintains a strict policy of nonretaliation for all workforce members who report issues.



Please review the company's <u>Mechanisms for Noncompliance and Corrective Action Policy</u> #A990801007 and the <u>Non-Retaliation and Non-Intimidation Whistleblower Policy #A030414073</u> for detailed information on reporting and workplace protections.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

A variety of laws and regulations apply to businesses such as our company, including those dealing with health care, privacy and security of associate and member information, reporting requirements, taxes, securities, employment opportunity, political contributions and many more. It is the company's policy to conduct its business in strict compliance with all applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.

Affordable Care Act (ACA)

The Affordable Care Act (ACA) is a federal law that provides a national framework for health care reform. The company and all health plans are required to implement the provisions included in the law within the designated time frames.

Centers for Medicare and Medicaid (CMS)

The company complies with all laws, rules and regulations pertaining to the Medicare Advantage (MA) and Medicare Prescription Drug Benefit programs.

Independent Health's Fraud Prevention Plan

The company has a comprehensive plan outlining the many ways in which we work to prevent, detect, correct, and defend against fraud, waste and abuse (FWA). Located on InsideIH, Corporate Guides and Forms, please consult the Fraud Prevention Plan to enhance your understanding of the elements of our fraud prevention efforts.

Fraud Laws and Whistleblower Rights and Protections

It is the company's policy to conduct its business in strict compliance with all applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations. The company is committed to detecting, correcting, reporting and preventing potentially illegal and fraudulent practices. The company has a comprehensive fraud and abuse program, which is led by its Special Investigations Unit (SIU) that is designed to detect, correct, prevent and report potentially illegal and fraudulent practices as outlined in our Corporate Fraud
Prevention and Reporting Policy #A990901029 and Returning of Overpayment Policy #A20150512027.

In furtherance of the company's culture of fraud awareness, our associates, business partners and providers undergo annual fraud, waste and abuse (FWA) education. Every associate has a responsibility to report any potential fraud, waste, or abuse.

The Fraud Laws and Deficit Reduction Act Notice Policy #M111103166 contains important information about federal and state fraud and abuse laws, and whistleblower (Qui Tam lawsuits) protection laws. Collectively, these laws and rules create a framework for federal and state governments to detect and prevent fraud and abuse in the health care system and to protect the individuals and entities who provide information to the government about such fraud and abuse. For any questions regarding false claims or federal and/or state fraud laws, please contact the Compliance Department or SIU.

Independent Health.

Please refer to Exhibit 1 for additional information.

Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA)

The company is committed to protecting private data of its plan participants and members. Any associate who violates a HIPAA privacy or security policy is subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination of employment.

Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act (HITECH)

HITECH is a U.S. law which amended HIPAA and requires the company to notify individuals whose data was breached through unauthorized use or disclosure of unencrypted protected health information (PHI). Many other provisions of HITECH affect the company as well, including requirements that our business associates implement security and privacy controls over and how we account for disclosures of PHI.

Confidentiality and Non-Disclosure

The protection of confidential business information is vital to the interests and the success of the company and is consistent with our core values.

All associates are required to sign an Associate Agreement as a condition of employment for the confidentiality, security and non-disclosure of confidential business information, which includes financial data, protected health information (PHI), or other non-public proprietary company information. Associates agree to abide by all of the company's privacy, confidentiality and security policies and state and federal laws, rules and regulations. This does not limit associates right to discuss their own personal employment information as related to their terms and conditions of employment.

Associates may only use or disclose this information as required in the course of their work-related duties and responsibilities and only use and disclose the minimum amount of information necessary to accomplish their work-related duties and responsibilities.

Associates who improperly use, disclose or fail to keep secure business information will be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination of employment and legal action, even if they do not actually benefit from the disclosed information.

Conflict of Interest

A conflict of interest may result from any activity, financial investment, interest, association, or relationship (including relationships with family members, relatives, friends and social acquaintances), that conflicts with associate's independent exercise of judgment concerning their employment and/or the proper discharge of their duties in the best interests of Independent Health and/or its affiliate organizations.

In accordance with our values, the company requires that an associate, as a condition of his or her employment, carry out the following responsibilities:

- 1. Immediately report conflicts of interest that they are party to, or that they observe or are aware of to the Chief Compliance Officer.
- 2. Disclose such conflict to the Chief Compliance Officer or management as soon as the associate is aware of it and before the issue over which I have some power or influence is discussed or decided.



- A disclosure form is available on the Compliance department page on InsideIH for associates to submit.
- 3. Refrain from participation in any decision-making process in which they have a potential or actual conflict of interest unless such conflict is fully disclosed to the Ethics Committee and the Committee waives such conflict.
- 4. Outside employment of an associate cannot interfere with performance or scheduling or create a conflict of interest. Prior approval from an associate's department leader is required and any potential conflicts of interest with the outside employment should be submitted to Compliance for review. If deemed a conflict of interest, the company reserves the right to ask the associate to terminate outside employment.

For more information see the Conflict of Interest Reporting Policy #A991018002.

In accordance with the <u>Corrective Action/Progressive Discipline Policy #A040628200</u> and <u>Compliance, Privacy and Security Event Scoring Policy #A20140303001</u>, any associate who acts in violation of the law and/or this corporate policy is subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination of employment.

Diversity/Inclusion

At our company, we believe our success depends on our ability to foster a culture that values and appreciates the individual differences of our associates. This belief is embodied in our organization's values of passionate, caring, respectful, trustworthy, collaborative, accountable.

By creating an environment that respects and cares for all people, we can effectively respond to the diverse needs of our associates, customers and community. Diverse in understanding, diverse in skills, diverse in thought, diverse in culture – these are the qualities that make us the best at enabling affordable access to quality health care and improving the health of the communities we serve.

Equal Employment Opportunity/Affirmative Action

As an Equal Opportunity/Affirmative Action Employer, the company will not discriminate in its employment practices due to an applicant's race, color, creed, religion, sex (including pregnancy, childbirth or related medical conditions) sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, transgender status, age, national origin, marital status, citizenship, physical or mental disability, prior arrest or conviction record, genetic information, predisposing genetic characteristics, , domestic violence victim status, military status or service, familial status, an individual's or a dependent's reproductive health decision making or on the basis of an individual's known relationship or association with a member or members of a protected class, or any other characteristics protected under applicable law.

It is also the policy of the company to take affirmative action to employ and to advance in employment all persons regardless of their status as individuals with disabilities or protected veterans, and to base all employment decisions only on valid job requirements. This policy shall apply to all employment actions, including but not limited to recruitment, hiring, upgrading, promotion, transfer, demotion, layoff, recall, termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation and selection for training, including apprenticeship, at all levels of employment.



Associates can obtain additional information in our Equal Opportunity Employment Statement which is posted on our Careers page and company bulletin boards.

The company will make reasonable accommodations for qualified individuals with disabilities or other accommodations as required by federal or state law, unless doing so would result in an undue hardship to the company. An associate who feels they may need a reasonable accommodation should review the Reasonable Accommodation Policy #A20150714056 and contact Human Resources.

The company recognizes that in order to maintain and further expand our success, a program of Equal Employment Opportunity/Affirmative Action requires full cooperation and understanding by all associates. If at any time an associate feels that equal employment opportunity was not afforded to him or her, they should contact their department leader, or a human resources business partner or generalist.

Discrimination and Harassment in the Workplace

As outlined in the Corporate's *Non-Discrimination and Anti-Harassment Policy #A900800211* the company is committed to providing a work environment free of all forms of discrimination, including harassment on the basis of a person's race, color, creed, religion, sex (including pregnancy, childbirth or related medical conditions), sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, transgender status, age, national origin, marital status, citizenship, physical or mental disability, prior arrest or conviction record, genetic information, predisposing genetic characteristics,, domestic violence victim status, military status or service, familial status, an individual's or a dependent's reproductive health decision making, or on the basis of an individual's known relationship or association with a member or members of a protected class, or any other characteristics protected under applicable law. Further, the company prohibits all forms of unlawful harassment which is unwelcome conductbased on any protected class. This also includes harassment or retaliation against someone because they have complained about discrimination, filed a charge of discrimination, or participated in an employment discrimination investigation or lawsuit. The company promptly investigates every discrimination claim brought to its attention, and for any finding of discrimination takes appropriate disciplinary action, up to and including termination of employment.

Harassment is against the law whenever an individual is subjected to inferior terms, conditions or privileges of employment. Harassment includes any conduct that has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an individual's work performance or creating an intimidating, hostile or offensive work environment, or otherwise adversely affects an individual's employment opportunities. Harassment need not be severe or pervasive to be unlawful and can be any harassing conduct that consists of more than petty slights or trivial inconveniences Prohibited offensive conduct may include offensive jokes, slurs, epithets or name calling, physical assaults or threats, intimidation, ridicule or mockery, insults or put-downs, offensive objects or pictures, and interference with work performance. It can also include written or graphic material transmitted via or stored in e-mail, text messages, social media or any other electronic media or device.

Additionally, under the company's business conduct rules, bullying of any kind is prohibited in the 3-1-22



workplace. Workplace bullying is repeated, health-harming mistreatment in the form of verbal abuse, threats, intimidation, humiliation and work sabotage that undermines business and services.

All complaints of discrimination and harassment will be thoroughly investigated in a discreet and timely manner. Complainants and witnesses will be protected from retaliation. At the end of the investigation, the complainant will be notified of the findings, conclusion and any appropriate actions to be taken. If a complaint is determined to be well-founded, immediate disciplinary action against the offender(s) will be taken, up to and including termination of employment. We trust that all associates will continue to act in a responsible, respectful and professional manner to maintain a work environment free from discrimination in any form. For more information, see the <u>Non-Discrimination and Anti-Harassment Policy #A900800211</u>

Sexual Harassment

The company is also committed to maintaining a workplace free from sexual harassment. Sexual harassment is a form of workplace discrimination. All associates are required to work in a manner that prevents sexual harassment in the workplace. Our <u>Sexual Harassment Policy #A201810008080</u> is one component of the company's commitment to a discrimination-free work environment.

Sexual harassment is offensive, is a violation of our policies, is unlawful, and may subject the company to liability for harm to targets of sexual harassment. All associates have a legal right to a workplace free from sexual harassment. Sexual harassment will not be tolerated. Sexual harassment includes harassment on the basis of sex, sexual orientation, self-identified or perceived sex, gender expression, gender identity and the status of being transgender. Sexual harassment can occur between an individual, regardless of their sex or gender. New York law protects associates and contingent workers, and those employed by companies contracting to provide services in the workplace.

Sexual harassment is unlawful when it subjects an individual to inferior terms, conditions or privileges of employment. Harassment need not be severe or pervasive to be unlawful and can be any harassing conduct that consists of more than petty slights or trivial inconveniences. Sexual harassment includes unwelcome conduct which is either of a sexual nature, or which is directed at an individual because of that individual's sex when:

- Such conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an individual's work performance or creating an intimidating, hostile or offensive work environment, even if the reporting individual is not the intended target of the sexual harassment.
- Such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of employment; or
- Submission to or rejection of such conduct is used as the basis for employment decisions affecting an individual's employment.

A sexually harassing hostile work environment includes but is not limited to words, signs, jokes, pranks, intimidation or physical violence which are of a sexual nature, or which are directed at an individual because of that individual's sex. Sexual harassment also consists of any unwanted verbal or physical advances, sex stereotyping, sexually explicit derogatory statements or sexually discriminatory remarks made by someone which are offensive or objectionable to the recipient, which cause the recipient



discomfort or humiliation, which interfere with the recipient's job performance. The policy describes some of the types of acts that may be unlawful sexual harassment.

All associates are encouraged to report any harassment or behaviors that violate this policy. The policy and complaint form are available on Inside IH and is also available in Human Resources. Reports may be made verbally or in writing. Any associate who has been subjected to behavior that may constitute sexual harassment or who witnesses or becomes aware of potential instances of sexual harassment should report such behavior to a supervisor, manager or a Human Resources Business Partner or Generalist. Managers and supervisors are **required** to report any complaint that they receive, or any harassment that they observe or become aware of to their Human Resources Business Partner or Generalist. No person covered by this Policy shall be subject to adverse action because the associate reports an incident of sexual harassment, provides information, or otherwise assists in any investigation of a sexual harassment complaint. Aside from the internal process at the company, associates may also choose to pursue legal remedies with external entities.

The company will conduct a prompt and thorough investigation that ensures due process for all parties, whenever management receives a complaint about sexual harassment, or otherwise knows of possible sexual harassment occurring. All associates, including managers and supervisors, are required to cooperate with any internal investigation of sexual harassment.

Associates of every level who engage in sexual harassment or retaliation, including managers and supervisors who engage in sexual harassment or who allow such behavior to continue, will be penalized for such misconduct.

All associates will be provided with a copy of the policy upon hire and are required to complete training on an annual basis. For more information, see the corporate <u>Sexual Harassment Policy</u> #A201810008080.

Proprietary Information

Proprietary information represents any company information that is not publicly known. This information covers any aspect of the company's business, including financial, technical, sales, human resources, marketing, IT, etc. Proprietary information also represents any present or future activities of the company.

All associates have a responsibility to protect the company's proprietary information. Any associate found using this proprietary information for any purpose other than the business of the company will be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination of employment and/or criminal prosecution.

Protected Health Information (PHI)

Protected health information (PHI) refers to individually identifiable health information that is transmitted or maintained by the company in any form. Individually identifiable health information is health information (including genetic information) that is created or received by the company, that relates to the physical or mental health or condition of a member or to the provision of health care to 3-1-22



the member or the payment for such health care, and that identifies the member.

Any use or disclosure of PHI in violation of the company's privacy, confidentiality and security policies and procedures of HIPAA should be reported **immediately** to the Information Risk Office at (716) 250-7300 or x2800. Such disclosures may require immediate notification to groups, affected members, and regulatory agencies, depending on the nature of the disclosure. Any disclosure may result in disciplinary action, up to and including the termination of employment or association with the company, and the imposition of civil penalties and criminal penalties under applicable federal and state law.

Intellectual Property

The company's intellectual property policy is intended to cover all forms of intellectual property, including but not limited to, patents, copyrights, trademarks, and trade secrets.

The term "intellectual property" is a very broad term and generally includes, but is not limited to all inventions (whether patentable or not), creations, discoveries, concepts, ideas, findings, designs, development, materials, processes, algorithms, trademarks, service marks, copyrights, technology, computer software and programs (source and object code), works of authorship, formulas, trade secrets, disclosures, patent applications, patents, machines, molds, assemblies, improvements, data, advertising, recordings, compilations, compositions, methods, devices, manufacture, formulas, techniques, products, prototypes, as well as improvement thereof and rights, claims or know-how related thereto.

During associates relationships with the company, associates agree that Independent Health will own all rights in and to the intellectual property created by associates if the intellectual property: (1) is created or developed while on the company time; (2) is created or developed with use of the company's facilities; (3) is created or developed in whole or in part based on the company's intellectual property or confidential information; or (4) relates in any way to associates duties for the company.

Associates agree to promptly inform the company of any intellectual property created by associates during their relationship with the company. From time to time, the company may need associates' assistance to protect the intellectual property and associates agree to execute all documents the company requires so that the company may obtain, secure, maintain, or enforce the company's intellectual property rights throughout the world.

Acceptance of Gifts

The acceptance of gifts from an external person, firm, or vendor can raise questions related to conflict of interest and/or undue influence. Therefore, associates must follow these principles:

- 1. An associate cannot accept any gift from an external person, firm or vendor if the intent is to influence.
- 2. An associate may never accept a gift of cash or cash equivalent gift (e.g., gift certificates or gift cards) from an external person, firm or entity.
- 3. An associate must report the receipt of gifts in value of \$35 or more to the Chief Compliance Officer using the Receipt of Gifts form located on the Compliance Department page on Inside IH.



This form must be completed and provided to the Chief Compliance Officer within five calendar days from receipt of the gift. Failing to report gifts or other remuneration from an external person, firm or vendor to the Chief Compliance Officer may result in disciplinary action, up to and including termination of employment.

4. Accepting gifts or other remuneration from an external person, firm or vendor that does not comply with ethical guidelines is subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination of employment.

For more information, see the <u>Associate Gift Acceptance Policy #A000601056</u>

Anti-Retaliation

The company will not tolerate retaliatory action of any kind, taken by a supervisor or associate against an associate who has followed the company's policies and in good faith reasonably believes or suspects wrong-doing or noncompliance has occurred. This includes associates who participate in/with an organizational investigation pertaining to alleged wrong-doing or noncompliance or who assists appropriate authorities in investigating possible wrong-doing or noncompliance. Associates are protected when they:

- Seek remedy or report incidents of known or suspected non-compliance or FWA, discrimination, harassment or workplace violence;
- Request reasonable accommodation;
- Use the company's open door or complaint resolution policies;
- Notify Independent Health management of on-the job drug use or safety violations.

Additionally, it is the policy of the company to foster an environment of open communication so that workforce members understand their obligations to report compliance concerns and understand they are protected when they do, as outlined under the corporate <u>Non-Retaliation and Non-Intimidation</u> Whistleblower Policy #A030414073

Access to Associate Employment Files & Records

An associate's employment file is confidential and will be maintained in the Human Resources Department. Associates who wish to review their own employment file should contact Human Resources (HR). With reasonable, advance notice, associates may review their own employment file. Files may not be removed from the area and are the express property of the company. Files may only be viewed in the presence of a human resources department member.

The company affirms the privacy rights of associates' medical records or health plan records. Furthermore, the company will not access an associate's personal information regarding the associate's (or the associate's dependent's) reproductive health decisions, without the associate's prior informed affirmative written consent. Since the company is both the employer and the medical coverage plan provider, associate's medical plan records for associates that are in our employer group medical plan, are in a confidential group which is blocked from access by other associates. Associates must speak with a designated Servicing Advocate to receive assistance regarding their medical plan questions pertaining to claims, billing, physician changes, etc. Associates may also request that their prior company medical plan history from previous employers or their current coverage in another group plan be blocked from 3-1-22



access by emailing <u>SeniorEnroll@independenthealth.com</u>. Any medical information that Human Resources obtains from an associate such as a doctor's note or other health information as necessary for administering such things as leaves of absence, workers' compensation, wellness programs, or health insurance will be kept in a separate confidential medical file.

Alternate Work Arrangements and Remote Work Requirements

Alternate work arrangements are available to those associates whose job requirements can be fulfilled outside the traditional office setting and/or hours. Not all positions are suitable for alternate work arrangements, including some positions where essential functions of the job necessitate on-site work. Departments are responsible for identifying their associates where this is a requirement of their job role and for identifying these roles in their business continuity plans.

Types of alternate work arrangements which may be considered are telecommuting, and flexible or compressed work schedules. The policy outlines the processes and requirements for when managers and associates agree to these types of alternate work arrangements.

Associates should be prepared to work remotely by ensuring they always have their company-provided equipment and regularly test its functionality. Although the company may provide some equipment, the associate understands that company is NOT obligated to provide all of the necessary equipment in order for telecommuting to be successful. In instances where an associate is required to work remotely but cannot work due to individual circumstances at their home (e.g., circumstances beyond IH control) the associate will be required to use PTO to be paid for the day. In this situation, it is the associate's responsibility to notify their supervisor that they are unable to perform their work remotely. For more information about working remotely for business continuity, see also handbook section: Facility Closings, Business Operations and Business Continuity.

Alternate work arrangements will be permitted or required, as the case may be at the sole discretion of management. All associates are responsible for reviewing the requirements of the <u>Corporate</u> <u>Alternate Work Arrangements and Remote Work Requirements Policy #A20140325013</u> to ensure they are aware of all policy requirements, including all privacy and security requirements whenever they may work remotely.

The company expects all associates to project a professional image and comply with all company policies including all business conduct rules when working remotely. Associates should follow the virtual engagement protocols to ensure they are successful in their alternate work arrangement and always keep in mind these three key considerations:

- Environment: The physical space you are working from and your surroundings.
- Attire: How you are dressed and presenting yourself.
- Etiquette: The way you "show up" to virtual meetings, and the way you conduct yourself through engagement.

A department seeking to have an associate working out of the area should consult the policy for additional requirements that must be satisfied.



An alternate work arrangement does not automatically continue when an associate changes job. Associates must review with the new manager whether an alternate work arrangement will be permitted or required in the new job.

Departments may develop flexible works schedules and compressed workweeks as based on their business needs, the company's core business hours and in accordance with the <u>Hours Worked Policy</u> <u>#A20150223014</u>. For more information, see the <u>Corporate Alternate Work Arrangements and Remote Work Requirements Policy #A20140325013</u>.

Associate Counseling/Disciplinary Action

As part of our commitment to our core values of caring and respectful, it is our expressed intention to consistently treat all associates fairly and equally. In return, the company expects all associates to conduct themselves in a businesslike manner and maintain a record of employment of which they may be proud.

The company uses action plans and/or progressive discipline as an effective means of counseling associates who are having work related issues which are impacting their ability to perform their job as outlined in the Corrective Action/Progressive Discipline Policy #A040628200 Associates' non-compliance with corporate policies and procedures, HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules, state and federal law/regulation, and/or illegal or unethical conduct will be reviewed under the Compliance, Privacy and Security Event Scoring Policy #A20140303001 with recommended corrective action issued in accordance with the Corrective Action/Progressive Discipline Policy #A040628200 Violations of department-specific policies, including attendance, should also follow the progressive disciplinary process. Progressive disciplinary action steps may be taken as follows:

- Verbal warning
- Written warning
- Final warning with or without suspension
- Termination

When circumstances and severity of an associate's actions and record of employment warrant, any of the above steps may be omitted to ensure that discipline is appropriate to the offense or misconduct under all the relevant circumstances. Newly hired associates (less than 6 months of employment) may begin the progressive disciplinary process at an advanced step. Disciplines will be in effect for one year after issuance when considering advancement to the next step in the progressive discipline process. Additionally, associates who have a written warning or higher disciplinary action within the last six months, may be impacted in their eligibility for consideration for a job posting.

A performance improvement plan is a formal document outlining performance issues and goals that an associate needs to achieve within certain timeframes. Performance Improvement plans may or may not be delivered in conjunction with progressive disciplinary actions.

For more information, see the *Corrective Action/Progressive Discipline Policy #A040628200*.

Independent Health.

Associate Training Modules and Programs

The company is committed to ensuring every associate receive a positive experience and the necessary training to support their legal and regulatory compliance at the start of employment as well as supporting their continued compliance on an annual basis.

The completion of required training is an essential function of an associate's job and failure to comply with required training, may be grounds for disciplinary action, up to and including termination of employment or termination of association.

Various training modules and sessions conducted by the company throughout the year are federally or state mandated. Training is an essential element of an effective compliance program. Associates are expected to report to training sessions on time and to complete training within required timeframes. Those arriving late to sessions will be asked to reschedule.

New Hire Orientation & New Hire Compliance Training

All associates (including any out of area associates) to attend the New Hire Day 1 and New Hire Day 2 program.

In addition to the in-person orientation, all associates are also required to complete the New Hire Compliance Online Module and HIPAA 101 for New Hire Workers online module within the first week of employment. They must also complete the New Hire Online Orientation program modules including *Sexual Harassment* within 30 days of employment.

Annual Required Training

To support associates' continued compliance and to ensure associates are updated on changing requirements, all associates and (including out of area associates) are required to complete and attest to the following retraining on an annual basis:

- Annual Awareness Training
- Annual Specialized Medicare Training (based on cost center)
- Annual Sexual Harassment Training
- Fraud, Waste and Abuse (FW&A) Training
- Cultural Competency Training

Additional required training may be added throughout the year, as per any new regulatory requirements.

Managers should consult the <u>Associate Training Policy #A20151013076</u> for any specific training/onboarding requirements for contingent workers.

Department-Specific Required Training Programs

Departments may develop and provide to their team members additional training relevant to the



individual or departments' responsibilities. Department leaders are responsible for maintaining and updating the training material as needed. Departments are responsible for working in conjunction with the Learning Center when developing department-specific training to ensure consistent with other required training and standards.

Other Training Opportunities

Associates may receive or be invited to additional training modules and/or programs throughout the year. Such training may be in the form of an email or monthly tips. Individuals may be required to attest to the receipt of the training and must complete the attestation and review within a specified period. The department or contact individual developing the material is responsible for assuring that all attestations, if required, are signed and received.

For more information about required training and orientation see the <u>Associate Training Policy</u> #A20151013076.

Associates' Use of Meeting Space

Meeting space areas on the campus may be utilized for associates charitable fund-raising activities related to company- sponsored fund-raising initiatives, or to support associates' professional business relations that associates are involved in due to their employment with the company and in furtherance with the company's mission. For example, associates may be involved in activities due to being an officer or board member with such professional organizations and may wish to utilize an the company meeting room to host a single or limited time event with that organization. All requests for use of meeting space for fund-raising, non-IH business relationship meetings or meetings scheduled outside of normal business hours should be submitted to Facilities for review and approval. Requests will be determined based upon type of activity, the availability of such space and potential for business disruptions, while also taking into consideration all of the necessary safeguards for protection of physical property, proprietary information and data.

Attendance

Associates are vital to the success of the company and attendance at work is a basic requirement of employment. Associates are expected to work their regularly scheduled hours and arrive to work on time. All hours must be accurately recorded. At the same time, we understand that there may be circumstances, such as illness, that prevent an associate from coming to work. We also recognize that associates sometimes need time away from work to maintain a healthy work/life balance. Our Paid Time Off (PTO) benefit allows associates the opportunity to take time off from work regardless of the reason. Associates are encouraged to take their PTO time to achieve a healthy work/life balance. Each department, based on its business need, determines the time off and work schedule for their associates. Absences from work are classified as either Scheduled or Unscheduled. An associate who reports to work and is observed to be visibly ill in the workplace, and where there is reasonable belief that the associate's continued presence in the workplace represents a health or safety risk to either self or others, the associate will be instructed to leave the workplace and to utilize PTO for such absences.

Call-In Procedures

Associates are required to contact their department leader (or designee) as prescribed by the 3-1-22



department practice if calling off from work, if expected to be late for work, or if there is a need to leave early from work. Attendance is a very important part of associate performance. Excessive absence/tardiness from work places an undue hardship on the department and may be grounds for disciplinary action, up to and including termination of employment.

Department specific attendance policies may be developed by department leaders and human resources business partners to outline specific attendance criteria and expectations with the goal of any policy to ensure consistent application for absences within the department, while also taking into consideration legally protected absences.

Associates are expected to manage time off; the granting of leave without pay is at the sole discretion of the department leader and human resources business partner.

Period of Consecutive Absence

Two consecutive days of no-call/no-show may result in immediate termination of employment.

Automobile Usage

It is the policy of the company that any of its associates who use a motor vehicle (whether it be a company- provided, a personal vehicle, or a leased vehicle) in the course of their duties representing the company will be compliant with state motor vehicle laws. Additionally, associates who drive a vehicle on company business must exercise due diligence to drive safely and to maintain the security of the vehicle and its contents. Any associate who is required to drive for company business must meet the requirements outlined in the *Automobile Usage Policy #A20151208091*. The company has some positions whereby the ability to operate a motor vehicle is an essential function of their job and those associates will be required to provide a copy of a valid driver's license and consent to the company to check the associate's driving record and verify the existence of a valid driver's license. These associates will be enrolled in the License Event Notification System (LENS) program and must be able to meet the driver approval standards of the policy at all times as well as complete any safe driving training modules as may be required. For those associates who may operate a motor vehicle (including utilizing a company-provided vehicle) occasionally for company business should reference the driver approval standards section in the policy to determine if they are eligible to be an approved driver for the organization. For more information, see the *Automobile Usage Policy #A20151208091*.

Business Communications

Communication is vitally important to our associate culture. We strive to ensure that information is shared within the company through a variety of venues and forums.

Company news, updates and successes are communicated through board meetings, emails and press releases. Every month, president and CEO, Dr. Michael Cropp, communicates a monthly message in the RedShirt Report via email to all of the associates about important developments in the organization. Our Intranet, named "Inside IH," provides associates with access to a wide array of company information In addition, we periodically hold town hall meetings, which communicate information to associates and allow associates to ask questions. We also hold an off-site company team meeting annually.

At the same time, associates are encouraged to communicate their thoughts and ideas. They can 3-1-22



express opinions and ask questions through email, meetings and casual "brown bag" lunch meetings with the senior leadership. Information on these meetings, as well as other events, is shared through email and posted on Inside IH and lobby television monitors throughout our campus.

Electronic Bulletin Board (Etc. board)

The Etc. board is available for non-business communication (i.e., sale of items [tickets must be no higher than face value], garage sale, home improvement recommendations, fund raisers, etc.). This may not be used for any criminal activity (including selling prescription medications) or gambling (including pools) for associates' personal, profitable gain, nor any other conduct prohibited by The company's business conduct rules. Additionally, inappropriate or offensive comments, inflammatory remarks and political/religious commentary may not be posted. The company does not endorse any views or comments on the Etc. board. The company will monitor the use of this board and reserves the right to remove any material deemed inappropriate. Excessive use/abuse of this resource may result in disciplinary action, up to and including termination of employment. The company is not responsible for items advertised, bought and sold on the Etc. board. All postings will be removed after thirty (30) days.

Inside IH

Inside IH is the company's Intranet, which contains company policies, benefits information, communication material and other relevant company information. Inside IH should be used as a reference for the most up-to-date company information.

Publications

The Communications Department utilizes a variety of vehicles to keep associates informed. These vehicles include but are not limited to:

- Inside IH Weekly News and Notes
- RedShirt Report monthly updates via email from the company's President and CEO

We also value associate feedback and provide associates with an online suggestion box called "AppleSeeds" that allows an associate to ask questions and express their views. When an associate submits a question to AppleSeeds, the question is directed to the person most qualified to answer that particular question, and an answer is promptly provided to the associate via email.

Business Conduct Rules

For the continued success of the company and its associates, the following business conduct rules have been developed to help manage day-to-day operations. The basic, fundamental requirements for acceptable work conduct include respect and goodwill toward fellow associates, honesty and integrity, coupled with a continuous effort to provide quality service. As our company values state: we are passionate, caring, respectful, trustworthy, collaborative and accountable. Our expectation is that all associates live these values in their daily work life.

The company's business conduct rules and expectations:

1. Associates are required to contact their department leader (or designee) if calling off from work, if expected to be late for work, or if there is a need to leave early from work. Attendance is a



- very important part of associate performance. Excessive absence/tardiness from work places an undue hardship on the department and may be grounds for disciplinary action.
- 2. For the purpose of safety and security, the company's security ID cards must be worn and visible at all times within the facilities.
- 3. Company property is to be used for company business purposes only. See Associates Use of Meeting Space for further information.
- 4. Associates are required to follow the <u>Acceptable Use Policy #A20121015034</u> when utilizing any of the company's 's information systems and data. Computers, VPN or Citrix devices that are used to access the company's computer server while offsite, company-issued phones/electronic devices, and all computer software and devices, including voicemail, Internet, texts and email are the property of the company and should be treated confidentially and with care.
- 5. Personal phone usage and non-work-related Internet usage should be kept to non-work times.
- 6. Associates will only access or use information systems (hereafter "Systems") or devices they are officially authorized to access and will not demonstrate the operation or function of Systems or devices to unauthorized individuals. They must not use Systems or request other associates to do so in order to access, obtain, or view their own Protected Health Information (PHI) or Personally Identifiable Information (PII), or that of family, friends or neighbors. If an associate discovers records for themself, family or neighbors while doing their job, they must notify their supervisor immediately. Associates should understand and agree that they should not have any expectation of privacy when using the company's Systems or devices. The company may log, access, review, monitor and otherwise use information stored on or passing through its Systems or devices, or activities conducted thereon, including but not limited to use of a computer, telephone, email, voicemail, mobile devices, internet access or any use of an electronic device or System.
- 7. Smoking is not permitted anywhere on company grounds, including the company parking lots.
- 8. The company prohibits the following:
 - Possession and/or concealment of weapons and/or firearms on company premises, including parking lots.
 - Theft of company, associate, consultant, vendor or member property.
 - Violence in the workplace or unsafe behavior including fighting and horseplay.
 - Discrimination.
 - Gambling.
 - Insubordination.
 - Illegal acts or criminal activity.
 - Dishonesty.
 - Harassment.
 - Offensive language.
 - Retaliation.
 - Threats.
 - Bullying.
 - Alcohol or illegal drug use.
 - Vandalism.

The above listing is not meant to be all-inclusive and exhaustive; associates who violate any of these



business conduct rules may be subject to appropriate disciplinary action, up to and including termination of employment. The company is an employment at-will employer.

Cell Phone/Personal Devices Usage

A personal device is a laptop, desktop, tablet, smartphone or other electronic device not owned or operated by the company. Associates must exercise discretion in using both personal and company provided devices during work hours such as keeping these devices on silent or vibrate. This includes calls, texts, Internet use, application use and emails. These activities can interfere with associate productivity and may be distracting to others. Connecting of personal devices to the company's network while on campus is strictly prohibited. PHI, PII and CBI must never be saved or stored on a personal device unless approved as a Bring Your Own Device (For eligibility and additional requirements for use, associates should review the *Mobile Device and External Network Services Use Policy #A20121114036*. Usage of personal devices should be kept to lunch and/or break times. The company will not be liable for the loss or damage of personal devices that are brought into the workplace.

Company-Provided Mobile Device and Usage

The company shall provide a company-paid cellular plan and device to associates only upon demonstrated need and written approval by the Vice President in the relevant business area. When utilizing a mobile device, associates must adhere to all guidelines outlined in the <u>Acceptable Use Policy #A20121015034</u> and record all such time performing work (including checking and responding to work-related phone calls, emails, texts, and voice mails either during their work day or outside of their regular work schedule) in accordance with the <u>Hours Worked Policy #A20150223014</u>. For eligibility and additional requirements for use, including roaming and data limits, associates should review the <u>Mobile Device and External Network Services Use Policy #A20121114036</u>.

COVID-19 Vaccine Requirement

All associates who wish to, or whose job position or any function requires that they come on site at any Company owned or operated facility or be present or working in the community will be required to be fully vaccinated (as defined by the CDC) against COVID-19. This includes associates who work at the Medicare Information Centers, in-person attendance for company meetings, and participation at outside events representing the company, including RedShirt volunteers at community events. Proof of vaccination will be required. For more information, see the <u>COVID-19 Vaccine Requirement Policy</u> #A20211215064.

Dress Code Guidelines - "Dress for Your Day" Philosophy

The company supports a" Dress for Your Day" philosophy. The company respects the rights of its associates to dress according to their gender identity and expression. Dress for Your Day is intended to offer our associates flexibility depending on their role, work location and type of interaction with external customers, follow associates, etc. As this may change from day to day, associates are expected to dress for their anticipated schedule each day using good judgment and basic guidelines. Associates should maintain an appearance that is appropriate for the type of work they are performing. Dress for Your Day attire may be more relaxed when associates do not anticipate meeting with external customers, clients, etc. All associates share in the responsibility to portray a positive image that aligns with our core values

Independent Health.

and managers are responsible for consistently administering the guidelines.

Special requests relating to dress/accommodation due to medical condition, disability, religion or national origin must be submitted to the associate's supervisor and the human resources business partner/generalist to review under the Reasonable Accommodation process.

If an associate is not sure what defines acceptable attire, a good rule of thumb is: If you have to think about it, then it is probably not appropriate. For detailed guidance, associates should see the *Dress Code Policy #A880501213*.

Drug Free Workplace and Alcohol Policy

The company's Drug-Free Workplace and Alcohol policy outlines the company's intent and obligation to provide a drug-free environment. The company absolutely prohibits the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession or use of controlled substance on its premises or while conducting company business off company premises. The dispensing, sale, or use of alcohol is also prohibited, unless at an approved, company-sponsored event. All associates are prohibited from performing their employment duties while impaired by a controlled substance or alcohol. This includes any associate who is a certified patient under the law.

Any associate who has knowledge of another associate violating this policy should contact his or her department leader or human resources business partner. If any associate is found, or reasonably suspected to be, impaired by controlled substance or alcohol at work, they may be subject to drug or alcohol testing and transported to a company-testing facility. The associate will be escorted by a company representative, and following the test, be given transportation home pending receipt of the results. The associate will be contacted by human resources regarding return-to-work status. A confirmation of impairment or intoxication on company premises or while conducting company business of company premises, either through admission, testing, or refusal to test, or evidence of other forms of prohibited workplace conduct as outlined under this policy, may result in disciplinary action up to and including termination of employment. An associate who under the law is a certified patient or registered caregiver must be in possession of their registry identification card at all times when in immediate possession of medical marijuana.

The company recognizes that alcohol and drug dependency and abuse as a potential health, safety, and security problem. Associates in needing our help in dealing with such problem are encouraged to use our Employee Assistance Program and health insurance plans as appropriate. Efforts to seek such help will not jeopardize any associate's job and will not be noted in any personnel record. Please refer to the Employee Assistance Program section of this handbook or the <u>Drug-Free Workplace and Alcohol Policy</u> #A051128216 for more information.

Associates must, as a condition of employment, abide by the terms of this policy and report any conviction under a criminal drug statute for violations occurring on or off company premises while conducting company business. A report of conviction must be made to Human Resources within five (5) days after the conviction.



Employment

Over the years, the company has built, attracted and retained an expert workforce in all areas of health care. We believe in promoting from within the organization. The reputation the company has earned as a top-rated health solutions company is the result of more than three decades of hard work and a relentless devotion to excellence. Commitment to quality is fundamental to everything the company does. It is this progressive spirit that has led to the company's success.

The company's dedicated associates and positive workplace culture have led to the continued designation as one of the Best Companies to Work for in New York State. The designation is a confirmation of the culture the company has fostered for more than 30 years to provide a positive work experience and outstanding products and services to our members, employers and partners.

Associate Status and Pay

All associates (unless they have an executed employment agreement) are considered at-will and their employment can be terminated at any time.

Categories of Employment

Associates of the company:

- Full-time associates are hired to work at least 37.5 hours per week, excluding lunch breaks
- Part-time, benefit-eligible associates are hired to work at least 37.5 hours per pay period, but less than 75 hours per pay period.
- Part-time, non-benefit-eligible/per diem associates are hired to work less than 37.5 hours per pay period.
- Out-of-area associates- business needs may necessitate the employment of associates who
 work and reside out of the state of the company's principal place of business; designated as
 "remote" in workday.

Contingent Workers (external resources; not employed by the company):

• Temporaries (includes interns), consultants, contractors, vendors, board members, cloud users.

Change of Employment Status

Changes in employment status will impact an associate's benefits eligibility and costs. Benefit changes will be effective the 1st of the month following or coinciding with the effective date of the status change. Associates who change to a part-time non-benefit eligible position will no longer be eligible for 401(k) employer match effective the pay period of their status change. PTO accrual is prorated for part-time benefit eligible associates. Associates changing status will see the change in their accrual at the end of the pay period in which the status change occurs. Associates who change to a part-time non-benefit eligible position shall be paid out for their PTO balance and forfeit their current frozen sick and ELT balances.

Employment status changes from full-time to part-time or vice versa must be approved by the associate's department leader and must occur at the beginning of a pay period. The request should be received in writing a minimum of one pay period in advance of the effective date of the change. Upon approval, the department leader should forward to the human resources business partner for final review. Any request for an associate's change in status will be determined based upon the business

Independent Health.

needs of the department and taking into account the expected duration for the change. An associate who requests part-time status is not guaranteed a return to full-time status. In the event business needs require a change to an associate's status, the associate will be provided 30 days' notice prior to the change. Any requests for an out of area associate must be submitted by the manager a minimum of four (4) weeks in advance to their Human Resources Business Partner/Human Resources Generalist to review for applicability and to ensure the associate can be properly set up to work out of area.

For more information, see the <u>Associate Status Policy #A20150407023</u>.

Pay Day & Recording Hours Worked

Associates are paid every other Thursday for work performed during the previous two-week pay period. The work week begins on Monday and ends on the following Sunday. All associates are required to accurately record and approve their actual hours worked/time off on the company's 's timekeeping systems every pay period. Hours worked should be allocated to appropriate project/product/line of business as directed by the department leader. Failure to accurately and completely record hours worked/days worked/time off may result in disciplinary action, up to and including termination of employment.

Associates are encouraged to receive their pay through direct deposit. Interested associates should complete in Workday under payment elections. Processing may take up to one (1) pay period, but once complete, paychecks will be deposited into the specified bank accounts and associates may view their paystubs online. Associates may revoke this authorization by updating their payment elections in Workday.

Deductions in Pay

Associates may expressly authorize certain deductions that may be withheld from their wages, other than mandated taxes and garnishments. Any requests to begin or stop a voluntary deduction must be submitted in writing to the Payroll Department. In the event of an overpayment of wages to an associate due to a clerical error, the Payroll Department will notify the associate prior to deducting the overpayment from the associate's wages. Additionally, exempt associates who do not have PTO available may have deductions from their full salary for certain absences from work. Any associate who has a dispute about a deduction from their pay, should contact the Payroll Department immediately. Further information about deductions of pay can be found in the <u>Payroll Deductions Policy</u> #A20151123082.

Taxable Fringe Benefits

Gifts or prizes awarded to associates may be subject to taxable fringe benefit requirements. Associates should see the <u>Associate Taxable Fringe Benefit Policy #A20150616054</u> for detailed information. Additionally, associates should consult the <u>Associate Gift Acceptance Policy #A000601056</u> for rules governing the receipt and reporting of gifts.

Hours of Work

The company's 's work week is Monday through Sunday, with standard work hours of at least 37.5 hours per week to be considered a full-time associate. The company's 's core business hours are Monday



through Friday, 8 a.m. through 5 p.m. Hours of work may vary by department and may vary based on workload. Associates are responsible for taking a lunch (meal) period during their workday where they are free and clear from their work duties as well as accurately recording all actual hours/days worked. Actual hours worked includes any work performed remotely. It does not include meal breaks. Associates who perform work for different lines of business, work on projects or grants, or provide services to the affiliates/subsidiaries are expected to properly allocate this time in their time records. Associates are also responsible for adding their work location, either "worked in office" (which also includes if you are traveling or working in a temporary location) or "worked from home". Failure to properly record hours of work will result in discipline up to and including termination.

Non-exempt associates whose standard work week is 37.5 hours and are required to work additional hours in the work week will be paid for any additional hours worked including overtime pay, as outlined below. Non-exempt associates must have prior approval to work any additional hours beyond their regular schedule.

Overtime Hours of Work

All non-exempt associates shall be paid overtime pay at one and one-half times their regular rate of pay for all hours worked over 40 hours during the work week. Department leaders may require voluntary and/or mandatory overtime based on business need. Exempt associates are not eligible for overtime pay.

For more information, see the Hours Worked Policy #A20150223014.

Termination of Employment

Voluntary Resignations

If an associate decides to leave employment with the company, we ask that the associate give us at least two (2) weeks written notice. This will allow us the opportunity to make the necessary adjustments in our operation. Prior to an associate's departure, an exit interview may be scheduled to discuss the reasons for resignation and the effect of the resignation on benefits. Failure to provide and fulfill a minimum of two (2) weeks' notice can result in forfeiture of PTO payout. (An associate may not fulfill the two [2] weeks' notice requirement with two [2] weeks of PTO and the termination date must be a workday.)

Involuntary Resignations

While the decision to commence employment is consensual, the same is not always true when the time comes to end the employment relationship. As an at-will employer, the company reserves the right to end the employment relationship at any time, with or without cause or notice.

Reductions in Force

While the company hopes to continue growing and providing employment opportunities, business conditions, market conditions and other factors are unpredictable. Changes or downturns in any of these or other areas could create a need to restructure or reduce the number of people employed. In light of these uncertainties, please be advised that it may become necessary to conduct layoffs at some point in the future, as it is for any employer in any industry. In the event the company deems it 3-1-22



necessary to conduct layoffs, it retains full discretion to select which associate(s) will be laid off.

Return of Property

Associates are responsible for all the company property, materials, or written information issued to them or in their possession or control. Associates must return all company property immediately upon request or upon termination of employment. The company may take all action deemed appropriate to recover or protect its property.

References

All reference requests should be directed to Human Resources (HR). No other person is authorized or permitted to release references for a current or former associate.

Employment of Relatives and Close Personal Relations

A relative or close personal relation of any associate of the company may apply for, be considered without prejudice for, and be hired into any employment position. All associates are required to disclose to Human Resources when they have relatives, or a close personal relation employed at the company. A relative includes a parent, sibling, spouse, son, daughter, in-law relations, grandparent, greatgrandparent, grandchild, great-grandchild, aunt, uncle, niece and nephew of the associate or associate's spouse. A close personal relation is defined as someone who, although may not be biologically related, includes unrelated individuals who act in the same manner described in the aforementioned relationships. It also includes those who have a romantic relationship or who reside in the same household such as a fiancé, live-in partner, acknowledged boy/girlfriend or dating.

No associate may be involved in an employment action or key decisions of the relative or close personal relation, such as: hiring, retention, promotion, compensation, evaluation or discipline. Responsibility for any employment action or key decision regarding a relative or close personal relation of an associate shall be assigned to a manager or supervisor who is not related to either the relative, close personal relation or the associate and who is higher in managerial or supervisory authority than both the relative, close personal relation and the associate. Employment of relatives or a close personal relation in the same department or under the same supervisor is authorized only with prior written approval of the department leader and human resources business partner. However, the associate and relative or close personal relation may not be within two levels of each other in the supervisory chain, as neither the associate nor relative or close personal relation should be involved in any supervisory (day-to-day) decisions of each other. This would include such things as work assignment, work schedule, time approval.

This policy does not prevent the development of friendships or romantic relationships between associates, however, establishes boundaries for such relationships in order to avoid any potential or perceived conflict of interest, favoritism, or improper influence over an individual's terms and conditions of employment. If an associate is unsure if a potential conflict exists, they should contact their human resources business partner or generalist.



Facility Closings, Business Operations and Business Continuity

Although the company is primarily a virtual/remote company, there may be circumstances necessitating the closure of our physical facilities, impacting positions that are unable to be performed remotely and/or associates who have arranged to be onsite at our facilities (training, meetings, etc.) or a rare instance where business operations must be closed or suspended.

In the event of a business interruption that requires facility closings as determined by the Incident Assessment Team (IAT) process (e.g., inclement weather or severe weather conditions), associates will be notified by text and/or e-mail with announcements concerning the status of the company's facility operations. Departments are responsible for identifying their associates where on-site work is a requirement of their job role that may be impacted by facility closing and whether they have the ability to work remotely in their business continuity plans.

The following outlines potential situations and expectations for associates:

- In circumstances where the company's facilities (campus) are closed, associates who work onsite, but have been enabled by IH to perform their work remotely (e.g., have been provided system access/capacity, laptops with VPN or citrix, thin clients, etc.) will be expected to work. These associates should be prepared to work remotely by ensuring they always have their company-provided equipment and regularly test its functionality. Associates who normally work remotely are expected to work. Associates who have been enabled by IH but cannot work due to individual circumstances at their home (e.g., circumstances beyond IH control) will be required to use PTO to be paid for the day. In this situation, it is the associate's responsibility to notify their supervisor that they are unable to perform their work remotely.
- In circumstances where the company's business operations are closed or suspended, as
 determined through the Incident Assessment Team (IAT) process such as due to a technology
 outage (e.g., network or systems are down) rendering associates unable to work (whether
 remote or onsite), associates will not be required to work and will be paid for his or her regularly
 scheduled workday.
- In either circumstance listed above, for positions that are unable to be performed remotely, as identified by the company, associates will be paid for his or her regularly scheduled workday.
- If the company's facility (campus) is open, yet an associate is unable to report to work or unable to perform his or her work remotely, the associate must utilize his or her PTO to be paid for the day. In this situation, it is the associate's responsibility to notify their supervisor that they are unable to make it in to work or perform their work remotely.

Job Postings Process and Criteria

Associate development is one of the company's primary goals, and its job posting program provides opportunities for associates' career growth. The company posts all open positions on workday and encourages associates to apply for open positions. Qualified associates are fairly considered for job opportunities throughout the organization. The job posting process is another way we value our associates and encourage learning and growth opportunities. We want the company to be a place where associates not only work, but one where they build lifelong and satisfying careers.

Independent Health.

Posting Process

Open positions (full-time and/or part-time) are posted internally for a minimum of five (5) business days, excluding weekends and holidays. If for any reason the job requirements change during the job posting process, the position will be reposted for five (5) business days with the appropriate changes noted. Any associate who wants to be considered for an open position must submit an application, which includes submitting an updated resume with the application, through the online application process.

All associates are encouraged to obtain career guidance from their department leader, his or her human resources business partner, or Talent Acquisition.

Posting Eligibility

Associates are responsible for reviewing job postings to determine their interest in, qualifications for and eligibility for the position.

To be considered a qualified applicant for the position, the associate must meet the minimum education and experience requirements of the position. Qualified associates of the company who apply for open positions within the company and within five (5) days on the internal job posting will be provided an interview for the position assuming they meet the following eligibility requirements: held their current position for at least one (1) year (or nine months if applying to a position within the associate's own department) and have had no written warnings or higher within the last six (6) months. (Note: Human Resources will review the applicability of the disciplines for associates applying to positions outside of their company.) Associates on a qualified leave of absence are eligible to apply for postings provided the leave of absence will be concluded prior to the expected start date for the position. External recruiting and advertising may be undertaken concurrently with the posting period and is under the discretion of the department hiring leader. Additionally, should a department have a promotional or lateral opportunity, hiring managers have the ability to consider only internal department candidates and this would be noted on the posting for awareness. Qualified subsidiary/affiliate associates and/or leased associates may apply for open positions and are considered after qualified, eligible internal candidates, but prior to the external pool of applicants. A qualified associate who does not meet the eligibility requirements for a position may be considered for a position after it has been open for at least thirty (30) days.

Selection Process & Criteria

Application materials (resume, cover letter, etc.) are evaluated by Talent Acquisition to determine if the applicant meets the education and experience requirements and equivalencies for each position. Resumes and application materials of internal applicants meeting the established qualification standards are forwarded to the department hiring leader for consideration. The department hiring leader will interview all of those internal qualified associates the company who have applied for open positions within the company within the required timeframes (five days of internal positing) and met the eligibility requirements. The department hiring leader may also elect to interview other qualified internal applicants from other companies within the organization and/or external applicants.

Talent acquisition will extend all job offers to the candidates. The hiring leader is not authorized to make 3-1-22



any job offers to ensure adherence to the policy and no commitment may be made to any applicant before the selection process is complete.

All internal applicants within the company who were interviewed and are not selected will be notified by the hiring leader of the decision to hire another candidate and the hiring leader will discuss the reasons why they were not selected. Talent Acquisition does not release information relating to an applicant's status, including those applicants that have come through the referral process.

Transfer Dates

When an internal candidate accepts a posted position, the start or transfer date is determined by both affected department leaders. Transfer dates may be delayed if the vacancy negatively impacts the business unit. Transfer dates must occur at the beginning of a pay period.

See the Job Posting Policy #A101222055 for more information about applying for positions.

Learning Center

As an organization that values its associates, the company is committed to providing associates with the resources to be successful in their roles, help foster development and provide career-building opportunities. The Learning Center offers a wide variety of options to help associates in these areas including:

- New Hire and Onboarding tools
- Systems training and job aids
- Leadership development programs
- Soft skills & Change Management training
- Personality Assessments
- 360 Assessments
- Teambuilding

Medical Emergencies

- If a medical emergency occurs onsite, associates should not attempt to diagnose, treat or transport the affected person; rather, 911 should be called immediately using a company landline to identify your corporate location. There is no need to dial a prefix.
- Stay on the line until you speak to 911 dispatch. They will confirm the type of emergency and your location. *
 - Calls made from an IH property will indicate the location as that business address, including affiliates.
 - Calls made from home using the new Genesys phone technology will indicate your location as the company's place of business, including affiliates.
 - Calls made from a cell phone will not identify your location; cell phones should only be used for 911 calls only when the medical emergency is not in a company building.



*If the location of the emergency is <u>not where you are physically located</u>, you should be prepared to provide the location of the emergency to the operator.

No Solicitation/No Distribution

Non-associates are prohibited from engaging in solicitation or distribution on company property at any time. Associates are prohibited from engaging in solicitation, including for memberships or contributions, or for personal endeavors during their own work time or during the work time of the associate or associates at whom the solicitation is directed. Associates are prohibited from distribution of materials in work areas at any time, during their own work time, or during the work time of the associate or associates at whom the distribution is directed. For purposes of this policy, "work time" includes all time for which an associate is paid or is scheduled to perform work and does not include meal or break periods.

The only exception to the above is the company's annual United Way campaign and/or other company-sponsored charitable events when associates are given the opportunity to make a voluntary contribution and/or participate in fundraising events.

Nonbusiness-Related Phone (Land Line/Cell) Usage

- Associates can make nonbusiness-related phone calls, but only when business needs allow.
- Use of a camera phone and transmission of any proprietary, confidential or restricted company information by any associate, contractor or visitor is strictly prohibited.
- Long distance phone calls may be made for business use only.
- Improper phone usage or excessive nonbusiness-related phone usage may be grounds for disciplinary action, up to and including termination of employment.

In addition to the above, associates should also see the section on Cell Phone/Personal Devices Usage and be aware that individual departments may also have their own supplemental policies on phone usage during business hours.

Open Door Policy

We value the importance of an open-door policy, and the positive effect it can have on associate satisfaction. The company is committed to promoting open and honest communication between associates and leaders across all levels of the company. The company encourages associates to provide feedback, raise concerns and seek guidance from leaders. The company prides itself on fostering a culture of collaborative spirit. If an associate feels that his or her feedback or concerns have not been addressed, or if they are not comfortable discussing the concern with his or her leader, the associate is encouraged to seek the assistance of a human resources business partner or generalist.

Parking

Parking is prohibited in designated fire lane areas, visitor parking and neighboring lots, unless the area has been specifically designated for company associates. Handicapped parking is only available to those persons with municipally issued "Handicapped Parking" permit which is clearly displayed as a hangtag or license plate. It is the associate's responsibility to read and adhere to announcements related to other



parking restrictions/changes as facility needs dictate. Associates must obtain an appropriate permit tag within the first week of employment and display while parking in company lots. Associates must provide an update to Physical Security with any changes to vehicle used and/or license plates. Associates are prohibited from parking on the grass, blocking dumpsters or using neighboring business' parking lots. Overnight parking is not permitted; emergency situations should be communicated to and approved by Facilities Security.

Personal Hygiene

The company is committed to ensuring a caring and respectful work environment. Please be considerate of co-workers and guests. Good personal hygiene is a must. If deemed necessary, associates may be requested to refrain from using perfume, lotion and cologne if sensitivities (allergies, illness) exist for other associates.

Posting of Required Employment Notices

Independent Health Association, its subsidiaries and affiliated organizations (hereinafter the company) shall post all required employment notices on the designated bulletin board in the Human Resources office/area of the company's principal place of business. In the event a subsidiary or affiliated organization does not have an on-site human resources office in its principal place of business, all required employment notices shall be posted in a conspicuous place for associates to permit them to readily observe such notices (e.g. lunchroom/breakroom, central conference area, company intranet page). Associates of Independent Health Association, its subsidiaries and affiliated organizations who are employed at a remote location outside of the company's principal place of business will have access to the company's required postings through the Human Resources SharePoint page on Inside IH and will also be provided with the required notices of the state where they are located.

Problem Resolution Procedure

The company is committed to providing the best possible working conditions for its associates. Part of this commitment is to encourage an open and frank atmosphere in which any problem, complaint, suggestion or question receives a timely response from the company's supervisors and leadership.

The company strives to ensure fair and honest treatment of all associates. Associates are expected to treat each other with mutual respect. Associates are encouraged to offer positive and constructive criticism.

If an associate disagrees with established rules of conduct, policies, procedures or practices, they can express their concern through the problem resolution procedure. No associate will be penalized, formally or informally, for voicing a complaint with the company in a reasonable, businesslike manner, or for using the problem resolution procedure.

If a situation occurs when an associate believes that a condition of employment or an employmentrelated decision is unjust or inequitable, they are encouraged to make use of the following steps. The associate may discontinue the procedure at any step.

1. Associate presents the problem verbally or in writing to his or her immediate supervisor, providing as much detail as possible. The supervisor may need to ask the associate questions or



- gather other information in order to effectively respond to the associate's concerns. The company hopes that most day-to-day employment-related issues can be resolved in this manner.
- 2. If an immediate supervisor is not available, the associate is not comfortable going to the supervisor or the associate is not satisfied with the supervisor's response, the associate can bring his or her complaint directly to the company human resources business partner or generalist. The company's human resources business partner or generalist will investigate the relevant facts and circumstances and respond to the associate's concerns as promptly as possible.
- 3. If the associate does not feel that the problem has been appropriately resolved after bringing it to the attention of the company's human resources business partner or generalist, they may present the problem, in writing, to the EVP, Chief Human Resources Officer. The EVP, Chief Human Resources Officer will review and consider the problem, inform the associate in writing of his or her decision and forward a copy of that decision to the associate's personnel file. The EVP, Chief Human Resource Officer has full authority to make any adjustment deemed appropriate to resolve the problem.

Not every problem can be resolved to everyone's total satisfaction, but only through understanding and discussion of mutual problems can associates and management develop confidence in each other. This confidence is important to the operation of an efficient and harmonious work environment and helps to ensure everyone's job security.

Security ID Cards

The company values the privacy and security of our members' information and maintains a secure, confidential work environment. All associates, and contingent workers must sign a confidentiality agreement and obtain an company- issued security ID card to access areas where protected health information (PHI) and confidential business information (CBI) is present, subject to the company's onboarding process and <u>Background Check Policy #A20120404003</u>. Visitors on the company's premises for the day may be escorted by a company associate sponsor after checking in at the reception desk. All visitors must provide municipally issued photo ID as proof of identity, such as a driver's license or passport. Access to restricted areas is further limited and monitored and requires specific approvals to comply with regulations.

- All persons on site without a company-issued security ID card, including persons who have forgotten or misplaced their security ID card, should report immediately to the reception desk at the start of the workday.
- Security ID cards are the property of the company and can be obtained at the physical security
 office.
- Security photo ID cards must be displayed in plain view for identification purposes while on the company's premises. Cardholders are expected to swipe their card when entering secured areas.
- Cardholders are to be in possession of their ID cards at all times; security ID cards cannot be loaned or given to another person for any reason and should not be modified in any way that obscures the image or name on the front of the card.
- Lost or misplaced security ID cards must be immediately reported to physical security who will



- deactivate and replace the ID card.
- Failure to comply with security policies is subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination of employment.
- Department leaders are responsible for the return of security ID cards issued to their associates, contingent workers when a contract has ended, employment is terminated or there is no longer a business need to be on site.

The company has the right to revoke security ID card privileges at any time and with or without cause.

Smoke/Tobacco Free Workplace

The company is committed to providing a safe and healthy environment for associates, contingent workers (temporaries, interns, consultants, vendors, contractors) and visitors on company-owned property. In accordance with the New York State Clean Indoor Air Act, smoking, including e-cigarettes and vaping are prohibited inside any facilities owned by the company or its subsidiaries/affiliates. Smoking/tobacco use, e-cigarettes and vaping are also not permitted on any company-owned property, including its parking lots and vehicles parked in its lots. For property that the company leases, associates are required to follow the facility owner's regulations with regard to smoking or tobacco use, e-cigarettes or vaping outside on their property.

Associates who violate this policy for the first time will be given a reminder about the company's Smoke/Tobacco Free Workplace Policy. Continued violations of this policy may be grounds for disciplinary action, up to and including termination of employment. For more information, see the *Smoke/Tobacco Free Workplace Policy #A110309096*.

Social Media

The company recognizes that use of social media (accounts, pages and content published) in today's communication environment. Further, the company respects the rights of associates or other members of the company's workforce to use their personal social media forums for self-publishing and self-expression on their personal time.

The company's <u>Social Media Policy #A20120413005</u>, outlines the acceptable use of social media during work hours, and/or when using company resources, including the company-branded social media accounts or sites. The policy also provides guidance to associate so they do not utilize social media: for the misuse of company information, to mispresent the views of the company, engage in in-appropriate non-business use, or to make defaming remarks about the business (maliciously false comments) or comments to /about colleagues that could be considered harassment or threats of violence.

Associates are prohibited from using the company name, logo, or other proprietary company information without permission on any social media site or service that may be construed as disparaging to the company, its associates or its brand. Associates should not post photographs or other images of the company's associates, members, clients or other identifying employment information without prior consent from the associate whose image is to be used and/or the company.

Additionally, associates need to consider if they are listing the company as their employer in their 3-1-22



personal social media profile, that it can imply their affiliation with the company.

Associates are also expected to follow the standards outlined in the policy when using company-sponsored social media sites and accounts and when dealing with media.

Associates are responsible for reporting material that they see on social media sites which are in violation of the policy (e.g., PHI, harassing material) to:

- Information Security at Independent Health, x2800 or (716) 250-7300, or
- Compliance Helpline at either 1-877-229-4916 or www.reportit.net or
- Their Human Resources Business Partner or Generalist.

Associates who violate this policy will be subject to appropriate disciplinary action, up to and including termination of employment.

Questions about the policy should be directed to the Chief Information Security Officer at Independent Health, (716) 635-4854. For more information, see the <u>Social Media Policy #A20120413005</u>.

Talent and Performance Management

The company utilizes a performance appraisal program designed to adequately assess individual associate performance, identify methods for improvement, and effectively communicate performance objectives and accountabilities. The performance appraisal process assists in providing associates with performance results compared to performance objectives and accountabilities. One of the primary purposes for conducting performance reviews is to assist and encourage career discussions between an associate and his or her department leader.

- The Annual Performance Review
 The annual performance review is a process that takes place in Workday from mid-December through to the end of January. Both managers and associates evaluate their performance for the year based primarily on 2 elements: an assessment of core competencies and performance.
- Quarterly Check-Ins
 Additionally, in order to maintain dialogue between the manager and associates throughout the year on the associates' progress towards goals, a check-in process occurs at the end of every quarter.

Wellness

The company is deeply committed to transforming the WNY community by creating a culture of health. To lead by example, the company created the HealthyMe associate wellness program in 2009. The program is designed to educate, support and motivate our associates in adopting healthy habits. Each year associates are offered a series of behavior change programs to help them get healthy or stay healthy. In addition, HealthyMe may offer onsite screenings, flu shots, weight management, walking, physical fitness and stress management programs.



Workplace Health & Safety

The safety and health of our associates at the company is our foremost business consideration. No associate will be required to do a job that they consider unsafe. The company will comply with all applicable workplace safety and health requirements and maintain occupational safety and health standards that equal or exceed the best practices in the industry. Additionally, the Company shall furnish a place of employment which is free from recognized hazards that are causing or are likely to cause death or serious physical harm to our associates which also includes a workplace free from violence.

Airborne Infectious Disease Exposure Prevention Plan

The company has adopted the model Airborne Infectious Disease Exposure Prevention Plan in accordance with the New York State Hero Act. Associates are provided with a copy of plan upon hire and the most recent copy of the plan can be found with the company's required postings on the Human Resources SharePoint page on Inside IH or click on this: <u>Airborne Infectious Disease Exposure Prevention Plan</u>

Workplace Safety & Violence Prevention

The company's commitment to workplace health and safety, including the prevention of workplace violence is outlined in its *Workplace Safety and Violence Prevention Policy #A120127203*. Associates are provided with this information in new hire orientation and the company provides annual education to increase awareness. The policy also outlines the company's methods of supporting victims of domestic violence and abuse while at the same time protecting and ensuring the safety of the company and its associates. Associates who have active orders of protection should inform their HR Business Partner or Generalist.

The company does not tolerate or condone any forms of workplace violence and violence, or threats will result in immediate suspension of the associate pending review/investigation. The company will identify, and hold associates accountable who perpetrate all threats or acts of violence. Associates must not use or be in possession of a weapon at the Workplace. Additionally, any object used to physically threaten another person will be considered a weapon; the associate using the item for such purpose will be held in violation of the policy and will be immediately suspended pending investigation. The off duty conduct of an associate can also be a violation of this Policy. Associates who are convicted of a crime as a result of violence, regardless of location or time, may be subject to corrective/disciplinary action, up to and including termination pending an investigation, when such action affects the work performance or attendance of the associate or directly impacts the normal operations of the company, including its mission and core values.

Associates & Managers Responsibilities

The company recognizes that each and every associate, regardless of their position, shares responsibility for a safe and healthful workplace. Associates have responsibility for their own safety as well as for the safety of their colleagues and our visitors. They are expected to participate in safety and health programs which include notifying a supervisor, Human Resources (HR) or a Facilities representative immediately of accidents, hazards, unsafe work practices and special workplace accommodation needs/concerns. All associates should be familiar with the company Emergency Response Procedures. 3-1-22



Our managers are accountable for preventing workplace injuries and illnesses, as feasible. They will consider all associate suggestions for achieving a safer, healthier workplace. Managers will also stay informed about workplace safety, potential health hazards and regularly review our safety and health notices. They will enforce our company's health and safety rules, ensure that associates follow safe practices during their workday and participate in mandatory safety training. Supervisors are also responsible for supervising and training their subordinates in safe work practices.

The company pledges to do the following:

- Strive to achieve the goal of zero associate accidents and injuries.
- Provide mechanical and physical safeguards as necessary.
- Conduct routine safety and health inspections to find and eliminate unsafe working conditions, control health hazards, and comply with all applicable NYS safety and health requirements.
- Train all associates in safe work practices and procedures.
- Provide our associates with personal equipment accommodations, as needed or requested, and train them to use and care for it properly.
- Enforce company safety and health rules; require our associates to follow the rules as a condition of employment.
- Investigate accidents to determine the cause and prevent similar accidents.
- Review these goals annually to document our safety improvement efforts and update safety and health programs and procedures as needed.

Reporting

All associates are responsible for reporting incidents that occur in the workplace which is outlined as follows:

- Incident Reporting for Workplace Injury/Illness- all incidents that have or could potentially result in injury to an associate, contingent worker or guest while on company property sites or while conducting company business must be reported immediately to Physical Security at (716) 635-4828 or ext. 4828. The affected person must also complete and sign an Incident Report Form, located on Inside IH, within 24 hours of the incident. If the affected person is not able to complete the form, his or her department leader, host or a witness is required to complete and sign the form. In all cases, an associate and either the department leader or host, is required to review the report for completeness and accuracy, sign and date the form and submit it to the Human Resources (HR).
- 2. Life-threatening workplace emergency- Associates aware of any life-threatening emergency in the workplace should call 911 immediately and provide the type and location of the emergency. There is no need to dial a prefix. Stay on the phone until you speak to 911 dispatch. They will confirm the type of emergency and your location.
- 3. Safety hazards or concerns- should be reported to Facilities at ext. 4000 during normal business hours. After normal business hours, please contact the Physical Security 24/7 Hotline at ext. 4828 or (716) 635-4828.
- 4. Stranger threats or incidents- including vandalism or other criminal activity should be reported



- immediately to the 24/7 Physical Security Hotline at (716) 635-4828 or ext. 4828.
- 5. *Customer/client threats or incidents* made by phone, mail, electronically or in person should be immediately reported to the 24/7 Physical Security Hotline at (716) 635-4828 or ext. 4828.
- 6. Threats or acts of violence made by current or former associates- should be reported immediately to a supervisor and the Human Resources Business Partner/Generalist. Any associate who has reason to suspect that violence may come to the workplace, from any source should immediately contact the 24/7 Physical Security Hotline at (716) 635-4828 or ext., 4828. If violence is imminent, call 911 immediately and inform an on-site supervisor in person as soon as possible.

The company prohibits discrimination against any associate for reporting a work-related injury, files a safety or health complaint or asks to see the employer's injury/illness log.

For more information see the Workplace Safety and Violence Prevention Policy #A120127203.

Workspace Standards

Office furniture, equipment and workstation components (including seating and files) are assigned based on job title and are specific to each workstation type.

- Please do not move or remove items from open workstations, vacant offices, conference rooms, or storage spaces. Requests to modify workstations and offices, including requests for whiteboards and artwork, should be directed to Facilitates.
- Small personal items and desk accessories are permitted within corporate guidelines; associates are not permitted to purchase or bring in furniture, lighting or equipment from home.
- Ergonomic assessments are available by request through the Facilities mailbox.
- Special medical needs accommodations should be directed to Human Resources (HR) for review, approval and implementation.

See the Facilities Professional Office Protocols for information on workspace and other areas in the workplace.



SECTION II: TOTAL REWARDS

COMPENSATION

Company Philosophy

The company's compensation program is designed to support, reinforce, and align IH's mission, vision, values, culture, business strategy, and operations and financial needs.

The company strives to consistently maintain its employer of choice position within the western New York area. As an employer of choice, the company believes that it is in the best interest of both the organization and its associates to fairly compensate its workforce for the value of the work provided. The company's compensation program is designed to attract, motivate and retain talented associates who drive the company's success. We strive to provide base salaries that are competitive in the market.

Compensation Administration

To ensure our total compensation package remains competitive, the Human Resources Department regularly reviews our compensation structure, conducting an extensive internal and external market analysis.

Based on competitive market data and internal job analysis, each position is assigned a compensation band. Compensation bands consist of a minimum, and a maximum rate of pay for every band. The market rate is determined by wage rates paid in the competitive market for comparable positions.

The company's total compensation package is reviewed on an annual basis and adjustments are made as needed to remain a competitive employer.

All associates have access to their compensation information, including their hourly rate of pay or annual salary and compensation band in Workday. Associates will be notified any changes to their compensation information through Workday. Additionally, the compensation bands and ranges are available to associates on Inside IH and in Workday.

It the company's policy to ensure the procedures and transactions for compensation administration comply with all local, state and federal wage and hour, labor, and tax laws and with Fair Employment Practices and other applicable legal requirements. The company's Corporate Compensation program outlines payments made or offered as remuneration for employment and includes but is not limited to: salary/hourly rate, overtime pay and other payments, market/equity adjustments, merit increases, bonuses and incentive compensation.

Associate Bi-Weekly Compensation

Associates are classified as either exempt or non-exempt. All associates will be paid on either a salaried or hourly basis.

Overtime pay

Non-exempt associates are entitled to overtime (premium) pay at one and one-half times their regular 3-1-22



hourly rate for any hours worked in excess of 40 in a work week. The regular hourly rate is the calculated average hourly rate for that pay period and includes shift differentials, on call pay, non-discretionary incentives and multiple rates of pay, if applicable. Exempt associates are not eligible for overtime pay.

Other Types of pay

Associates may be eligible for additional pay based upon shifts they are scheduled to work, the requirement to work on a holiday, perform on-call work or to be available in the event of an emergency. The issuance of these payments is governed under the <u>Hours Worked Policy #A20150223014</u>.

Merit Increases

A merit increase is an associate's increase in hourly wages or annual salary, based on individual performance. Merit increases are generally provided on an annual basis and are not guaranteed.

Eligibility for merit increases will be determined based on an associate completing their year-end performance appraisal process. Associates hired prior to the performance review year will receive a full merit increase; associates hired between January 1 and before October 1 of the performance review year will have their merit increase prorated; associates hired on or after October 1 of the performance review year, are not eligible for a merit increase for that year.

Annual Scorecard Incentive Program

The company's Annual Scorecard measures company performance as based on its annual operational goals. The Scorecard outlines these goals, focuses on strategic objectives that support these goals, and aligns these objectives with key measures. The Annual Scorecard evaluates the company's success in achieving these measures. The Scorecard results are tracked, monitored and communicated throughout the year.

Associate Annual Scorecard Incentive – The company develops annual scorecard goals that are presented to the associates each year. Eligible associates may receive an incentive payment. The issuance and amount of any such incentive payment will be made at the sole discretion of the organization, taking into consideration how well the company performs on the annual scorecard. The associate annual scorecard incentive, if applicable, is typically paid in February for the preceding year's performance.

Key Leadership Annual Scorecard Incentive – Based on the achievement of corporate goals and objectives (or a pro-rata thereof), as well as additional criteria for IHA key leadership, and is not to be considered a guaranteed annual remuneration. The key leadership annual scorecard incentive, if applicable, is typically paid in April for the preceding year's performance. Payment of the key leadership annual scorecard incentive is subject to the approval of the IHA Compensation Committee.

Eligibility for both the Associate Scorecard and the Key Leadership Annual Scorecard Incentive
Full-time and benefit-eligible, part-time associates are eligible for an annual scorecard incentive, if
applicable. Non-benefit eligible part-time associates, per diem associates and contingent workers (such
as interns, temporary staff, consultants and contractors) are not eligible for the incentive.

Independent Health.

Associates hired prior to the performance review year will be eligible for the full annual scorecard incentive, if applicable; associates hired between January 1 and prior to October 1 of the performance review year will have their annual scorecard incentive prorated; associates hired on or after October 1 of the performance review year, are not eligible for an annual scorecard incentive for that year. Associates rehired within the performance review year will be eligible to receive a pro-rated incentive based on the amount of time that they were employed in the performance year. Associates moving from an associate level position to a director or above level position, or vice versa, during a review year, will have their incentive pro-rated for the time worked in each position. To be eligible for the scorecard payment, associates must be employed with IHA on the date of payment. Associates out on an approved leave of absence will receive their associate incentive, if applicable, in the pay period following their return from leave of absence provided they return within the year in which the incentive payment was issued.

Pay Transparency Policy

The company will not discharge or in any other manner discriminate against associates or applicants because they have inquired about, discussed, or disclosed their own pay or the pay of another associate or applicant. However, associates who have access to the compensation information of other associates or applicants as a part of their essential job functions cannot disclose the pay of other associates or applicants to individuals who do not otherwise have access to compensation information, unless the disclosure is (a) in response to a formal complaint or charge, (b) in furtherance of an investigation, proceeding, hearing, or action, including an investigation conducted by the Company, or (c) consistent with the Company's legal duty to furnish information. 41 CFR 60-1.35(c)

For more detailed information about the company's compensation program, associates should see the *Corporate Compensation Program Policy #A981020324*.

COMPANY BENEFITS

Company Philosophy

As an associate, you get to enjoy many great benefits, from generous health care coverage options and Paid Time Off (PTO), to holiday pay and career development opportunities. Your associate benefits are just one more reason that the company has been recognized as one of the Best Companies to Work for in New York State.

When You Have Questions

Associates should contact HR@indepedenthealth.com for all general benefit-related questions.

Company Insurance

Medical, Dental, Vision and Prescription Insurance Coverage

The company offers low- or no-cost medical, dental, vision and prescription coverage to all full-time associates. Associates, spouses and dependent children (including legal dependents) to age 26 are eligible. (Note: disabled dependents may be eligible after age 26.) Part-time, benefit-eligible associates are offered the same coverage at 35-50 percent of the premium cost depending on plan choice. Associates are offered medical plans to choose from to accommodate their specific needs, and depending on the plan selection, an associate may be eligible for a Health Savings Account (HSA). Dental 3-1-22



coverage offers 100 percent covered preventative services.

Eligibility Requirements

Full-time and part-time, benefit-eligible associates qualify for medical and dental insurance coverage, effective on the first day of the month after thirty (30) days of employment with the company. Enrollment must be completed within the associate's first week of employment. An associate shall only enroll themselves and only those eligible persons as outlined above. As associate who enrolls a person for medical and/or dental insurance coverage who is not eligible is considered fraud, and may result in disciplinary action, up to and including termination of employment.

Any qualifying event such as family additions or deletions for coverage must be reported, in writing, to Human Resources (HR), within thirty (30) days of the date of the effective date to ensure coverage. If an associate does not have a qualifying event, they are only eligible to change their coverage during the company's annual Open Enrollment.

Leaves of absence may have an impact on an associate's benefits and deductions. Associates on a medical leave of absence should review the <u>Corporate Medical Leaves of Absence Policy #A091207339</u>. Associates on personal leave should review the <u>Personal Leaves of Absence Policy #A10122056</u>.

Family Status Changes

Each associate is responsible for notifying the Human Resources (HR)of any change in family status (qualifying event) within thirty (30) days, including but not limited to the birth or adoption of a child, a legal marriage, divorce or annulment, ineligible dependent (i.e., child reaching age limit for coverage) or other action that may affect coverage under health benefits. Failure to remove an ex-spouse or ineligible dependent from a health plan is considered fraud and may result in disciplinary action, up to and including termination of employment.

Life and Accidental Death and Dismemberment (AD&D) Insurance

The company provides company-paid life insurance at no cost to the associate. Full-time and part-time, benefit- eligible associates qualify for life insurance and accidental death and dismemberment (AD&D) insurance coverage, effective on the first day of the month after thirty (30) days of employment with the company. Both life insurance and AD&D are covered at 1.5 times the associate's annual salary. Coverage continues until the last day worked unless the associate is totally disabled. Associates have the option of converting their policy after termination of employment. For further information and/or plan documentation, contact the Human Resources (HR) or refer to Inside IH.

Supplemental Life Insurance

Full-time and part-time, benefit-eligible associates are also eligible to purchase voluntary, supplemental life insurance at their own expense. Coverage is available for associates, his or her spouse, and dependent children. Evidence of insurability may be required. For further information and/or plan documentation, contact the Human Resources (HR).

Employee Assistance Program (EAP)

The Employee Assistance Program (EAP), offered through Carebridge, provides confidential resources to



help resolve personal issues that may be affecting an associate's health, well-being, family life or job performance. Associates, their spouse and eligible dependents are eligible to use this resource at no cost. To utilize confidential services, associates may contact Carebridge at 1-800-437-0911 or www.myliferesource.com. Access Code: SF9H8

Flexible Spending Accounts (FSA)

Flexible Spending Accounts (FSA) are IRS regulated accounts that allow associates to set aside pre-tax dollars to cover out-of-pocket eligible expenses. The company offers three (3) separate accounts: medical reimbursement, dependent care reimbursement and adoption reimbursement. Participants elect to have a specified number of pre-tax dollars deducted from their paycheck each pay period.

Medical FSA

An account that allows associates to set aside pre-tax dollars to pay for eligible out-of-pocket medical, dental and vision expenses that are not covered under the associate's health plan.

Dependent Care FSA

An account that allows associates to set aside pre-tax dollars to pay for dependent care expenses. While this most commonly means childcare, it can also be used for children of any age who are physically or mentally incapable of self-care, as well as adult day care for senior citizen dependents who live with the associate, such as parents or grandparents.

Adoption Assistance FSA

An account that allows associates to set aside pre-tax dollars to pay for reasonable and necessary expenses that are incurred in the process of legally adopting an eligible child, including adoption fees, court costs, attorney fees and related travel costs.

For additional information on Flexible Spending Accounts (FSAs) and/or plan documentation, associates should contact the Human Resources (HR) or refer to Inside IH.

Adoption Assistance Program

The company offers an Adoption Assistance Program for full-time associates with at least one (1) year of service. The company will reimburse adoption expenses for qualified associates up to a maximum of \$2,000 per adoption. This reimbursement can be applied toward eligible medical expenses and/or any legal or adoptive fees.

COBRA

Participants in the company's medical, dental and FSA plans, as well as the company's 's Employee Assistance Program (EAP) are entitled to continue their coverage in the event of employment termination or if they are approved for an extended medical leave of absence beyond six months. Under the Federal Consolidated Omnibus Reconciliation Act (COBRA), continuation of coverage is available for a limited period of time to terminated associates, his or her spouse and dependent(s) if these persons would otherwise lose coverage. Contact Human Resources (HR) for additional information.

Defined Benefit Plan (Pension Plan)

The company provides eligible associates hired prior to July 18, 2011, with a 100 percent company-3-1-22



funded defined Benefit Plan (Pension Plan) to supplement his or her retirement income. The Pension Plan provides eligible associates with a monthly benefit payable for his or her lifetime beginning at retirement. For further information and/or plan documentation, contact Human Resources (HR) or refer to Inside IH.

Defined Contribution Plan (401(k) Retirement Savings Plan)

The company offers associates the convenience of a Defined Contribution Plan (401(k) Retirement Savings Plan) that allows associates to save money for retirement on a pre-tax basis. Associates hired prior to July 18, 2011, who made the one-time election to remain in the Pension Plan are still eligible to contribute to the 401(k) Plan with no matching employer contributions.

Associates hired prior to July 18, 2011, who made the one-time election to cease earning benefits in the Pension Plan are eligible for a generous employer matching contribution of 100 percent of the first 2 percent of pay that an associate contributes, plus 50 percent of the next 8 percent of pay that an associate contributes.

Associates hired on or after July 18, 2011, are eligible for a generous employer matching contribution of 100 percent of the first 2 percent of pay that an associate contributes, plus 50 percent of the next 8 percent of pay that an associate contributes.

Employer matching contributions begin after one year of service and associates must be in a benefiteligible position to receive employer matching contributions. The employer match is calculated on a per pay period basis; therefore, a 401k match is only awarded when the associate makes a 401k contribution in the pay period. The company pays all billed administrative fees associated with the Plan.

Education Assistance

The company encourages associates to pursue professional development through continuing education. The Education Assistance Program benefit allows full-time associates with at least one (1) year of service to be reimbursed for tuition costs of regionally accredited college or university courses and/or degree programs.

Maximum education assistance is calculated per calendar year and will be determined by the date of reimbursement payout. Education assistance is as follows:

• Reimbursement up to the current IRS allowable non-taxable limit which is \$5,250. maximum per year per associate.

Associates are encouraged to contact Human Resources with any questions concerning their eligibility. Please review the *Corporate Education Program Policy #A20130507042* for further information.

NFTA Metro Advantage Program

The Metro Advantage Program offers a metro (bus and subway) pass that is valid for unlimited riding for one (1) calendar month in Metro's entire Erie County and Niagara County service area on a pre-tax basis. Contact Human Resources (HR) for more information.



Company Merchandise

Independent Health is known in the community for providing the RedShirt® Treatment, making our company's brand one of the most prominent in the Western New York Community. We are proud to offer company-branded merchandise through an online store. The online store can be accessed through Inside IH.

Rewards and Recognition Programs

The company recognizes associates for their contributions to the success of their teams, company and community overall. with company-wide programs. While recognition comes in many forms, there are always several company-wide programs, all with the same goal to celebrate associates who live our mission, vision, and values.

Service Awards

Associates are recognized on key anniversaries of their employment and presented with a gift in appreciation for their service over that period of time. Associates celebrating a milestone anniversary with Independent Health will receive a gift for their anniversary bracket.

Value-Added Benefits

As an associate, you may be eligible for discounts at local retailers. See Inside IH for a listing of available discounts.

Volunteering and Programs

The company's associates are well-known throughout the community for their volunteer support and generous contributions to charitable causes.

The Company offers several programs to support our associates in their endeavors:

- Company-sponsored volunteer events (Red Shirt, Day of Caring and Got Red events tracked as part of the Red Shirt volunteer programs) -associates are permitted to attend these volunteer events, during their regular Workday subject to the business needs the department. Associates should record this time as "red shirt & volunteer" hours if the event occurs during their regular work hours. (Associates will not be paid any hours for their voluntary participation in volunteer events that extend past or occur outside of their regular workday.)
- Associates Supporting the Community Program- allows associates to connect their charitable giving with the causes of their fellow colleagues' choosing. Associates may make a one-time donation or ongoing deduction from their paycheck with the ability to self-manage their participation and make changes throughout the year through Workday to support nonprofit organizations throughout our community, including the Foundation. There is an annual solicitation process where associates have the opportunity to submit their requests for nonprofit organizations to be included in the program for the upcoming year. Associates can find information on Inside IH or direct questions to togetherwecare@independenthealth.com



SECTION III: TIME OFF & LEAVES

Associates are provided generous paid time away from work to celebrate company-designated holidays, for their personal needs such as well-being days for rest and relaxation to help us maintain a healthy work life balance, personal religious or cultural observances or celebrations that are not scheduled corporate holidays, childcare issues, personal, or public safety emergencies and sick leave time. Associates may also be provided leaves of absence when necessary due to their own or family medical situations, for bereavement or personal circumstances and for state mandated time off.

When You Have Questions

Associates should contact <u>Leaves@independenthealth.com</u> for any questions concerning time off or leave of absence information..

Company - Designated Paid Holidays

The company's offices will be closed (except certain designated departments) on:

- New Year's Day
- Martin Luther King Jr. Day
- Memorial Day
- Independence Day
- Labor Day
- Thanksgiving
- Day after Thanksgiving
- Christmas Eve
- Christmas Day

Eligibility Requirements

All benefit-eligible associates qualify for company-designated paid holidays. Full time associates will be paid 7.5 hours holiday pay based on the standard 7.5-hour workday; part-time associates will receive pro-rated holiday pay as based on their FTE percentage. Note: In order to be paid for the company-designated holiday, associates must have worked hours and/or utilize paid time off in the week containing the holiday. If an associate on a medical leave of absence is not utilizing any paid time off (PTO, frozen sick leave or ELT) during the pay week that contains a holiday, they will not be paid for the company designated holiday.

Holidays on Saturdays and Sundays

Unless otherwise designated by the president/CEO, a company-designated holiday that falls on a Saturday is observed on the preceding Friday and a company-designated holiday that falls on a Sunday is observed on the following Monday.

Holidays Worked

Non-exempt/hourly associates that are scheduled to work on a company-designated holiday and are deemed essential by leaders may be required to work on the company-designated holiday. If the associate must work, due to business needs, they will be paid for all hours worked on the holiday and a 25 percent (25%) holiday premium applied to all hours worked. Additionally, the associate will receive 3-1-22



7.5 hours of holiday pay (pro-rated if part-time associate); overtime rules will apply; overtime is not paid on holiday pay.

Paid Time Off (PTO)

Paid Time Off (PTO) is a bank of hours that associates can draw from for paid time away from work. PTO hours are accrued as set forth under the Accrual System section for each hour that an eligible associate is paid.

Eligibility

- <u>EligibleAssociates</u> All full-time associates, excluding associates with executed employment agreements. All part-time benefit-eligible associates (pro-rated based on hours paid as per the Accrual System section below).
- <u>IneligibleAssociates</u> Non-benefited part-time associates, contingent workers.

Accrual System

Paid Time Off (PTO) is an accrual system of time off based on length of service. Associates earn paid time off (PTO) from work for any paid hours, up to a maximum of 75 paid hours per pay period. PTO is earned each pay period and the PTO that the associate accrues each pay period will be available to the associate to use upon completion of the pay period so the associate must be active on the last day of the pay period in order to receive the PTO accrual.

Length of Service (years)	Max PTO Hours Accrued per Pay Period	Max PTO Days Accrued per
Non-Exempt (Hourly)		
0-3	6.06	21
3+ - 10	7.50	26
10+	8.37	29
Exempt (Salaried)		
0-3	7.50	26
3+-10	8.94	31
10+	9.81	34

^{*}Chart based on a full-time associate

Eligible associates will receive their accrual increase of PTO hours beginning in the pay period in which they will complete their 3rd and 10th years of service. Approved time off from work (i.e., Disability, Workers' Compensation, FMLA, NYS Paid Family Leave) will not be counted against an associate when determining length of service.

End of Year Carryover



Full-time associates are eligible to carryover up to 3 weeks (112.5 hours) of PTO into the following calendar year. Benefit-eligible part-time associates are eligible to carry over up to 3 weeks (pro-rated based on their regularly scheduled hours) of PTO into the following calendar year. If the associate's PTO carry-over balance includes unused sick leave, the associate will be permitted to use that PTO immediately for sick leave in the following year without having to wait for additional accrual, however the associate may not charge more than 56 hours each year to NY Paid Sick Leave (NYPSL).

Any additional PTO remaining after the 3 weeks (112.5 hours) carryover will be moved into the associate's frozen sick bank. Frozen sick banks may be used only when an associate is out on a qualified disability and has exhausted their extended leave time.

PTO Balances and Usage

Negative PTO balances and/or "borrowing" of PTO time are not allowed.

- <u>Non-ExemptAssociates</u>: Associates should use PTO to cover any time not worked in their regularly scheduled workday. PTO must be recorded in 15-minute increments (.25 in Workday).
- <u>ExemptAssociates</u>: Exempt associates are required to use PTO for full-day absences. Exempt associates are also required to use PTO when for absences of a half (1/2) day or greater.

Requesting PTO

Associates must request scheduled PTO time as per their department policy and practice. Associates must receive approval from their department supervisor prior to utilizing scheduled PTO and requests to take PTO for longer than a two-week period should be reviewed with the HRBP/Generalist for approval. If PTO is not pre-approved by department supervisor, it will be considered Unscheduled PTO.

Recording PTO Usage

Workday is utilized to track accruals for PTO balances and to record an associate's time. PTO should be recorded as scheduled, unscheduled or NY paid sick. Scheduled PTO is time off that has been preapproved by the associate's supervisor. Unscheduled PTO is time off that has not been pre-approved in advance. NY paid sick may be used for qualifying absences outlined below. It is the associate's responsibility to accurately record their time off. Failure to accurately and completely record time off may result in disciplinary action, up to and including termination of employment.

New Hires

Associates will begin accruing time immediately upon hire. There is no waiting period to use PTO including utilizing PTO for qualifying sick leave absences under the New York paid sick leave law.

New York Paid Sick Leave (NYPSL)

Associates may utilize up to 56 hours of paid time off (PTO) per calendar year for NY Sick Leave (NYPSL) for qualifying absences for themselves or a family member.

Associates taking sick leave for three (3) or more consecutive previously scheduled workdays will be required to provide documentation confirming their eligibility to take sick leave. The documentation



need not disclose the reason or any confidential information for the leave but should support the existence of the need for sick leave, the amount of leave needed, and a date that the associate may return to work. (The associate shall not be responsible for any costs or fees associated with obtaining medical or other verification of eligibility for use of this sick leave.) If the associate's sick leave qualifying absence also qualifies under the New York Paid Family Leave (PFL) and/or the Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA) and the associate wishes to use these leaves concurrently, the associate will also be required to submit this leave request through Sun Life.

Non-benefited associates are eligible to use up to 56 hours of NY Paid Sick Leave (NYPSL) per calendar year for qualifying absences and should contact Leaves@independenthealth.com for their balances and usage. This unused NY Paid Sick Leave (NYPSL) will not be paid out upon termination of employment. Out-of-state associates will be provided sick leave time only up to the extent as required by their state.

Associates can find additional information about utilizing their time off for sick leave qualifying absences in the *Paid Time Off Policy #A101213052*.

Termination of Employment

PTO will be paid out if an associate leaves the company under good terms. An associate who is terminated as a result of a violation of the Business Conduct Rules will forfeit their PTO payout. An associate who fails to provide and fulfill a minimum of two (2) weeks' notice prior to resigning from employment can result in forfeiture of PTO payout. (An associate may not fulfill the two (2) weeks' notice requirement with two (2) weeks of PTO.)

Transfer of Employment

Associates eligible to earn PTO who transfer positions to a subsidiary or affiliated organization will have the ability to transfer their PTO to the new company. On their transfer date, associates will start accruing at the new company's accrual rate based on their seniority date.

For more information, see the Paid Time Off Policy #A101213052.

Medical Leaves of Absence and Benefits

The company provides medical leaves of absences to associates and short and long-term disability benefits. An associate must contact Sun Life directly to request a medical leave of absence. If the need for the leave is foreseeable, an associate must give at least thirty (30) days advance notice. If this is not possible, associate must at least give notice as soon as practical. Associates will be provided with the necessary paperwork that must be completed within the required timeframes in order to approve the leave of absence. All information provided to Sun Life is held in the strictest of confidence. Supervisors/managers who have an associate out of work due to an unplanned medical absence are required to notify Leaves@independenthealth.com if the absence lasts greater than three (3) consecutive days. All associates are responsible for ensuring they have provided Sun Life with updated medical documentation in a timely manner throughout their leave and following all provisions in the Corporate Medical Leaves of Absence Policy #A091207339. Associates provided with a medical leave of absence are prohibited from working for another employer during the approved leave of absence. 3-1-22



Associates may be eligible for short-term and/or long-term disability benefits as follows:

Short-Term Disability

If an associate is unable to work due to a non-work-related illness or injury for more than seven consecutive calendar days, they may qualify for Short-Term Disability benefits. If an associate is going to be out of work for more than seven consecutive calendar days, it is his or her responsibility to notify Sun Life as soon as possible.

Associates on a qualified Short-Term Disability are eligible for up to 26 weeks of benefits equal to 50 percent of his or her average weekly wage to a maximum of \$170 per week. The company also provides salary continuation for eligible associates on a qualified disability based on length of service. Associates should refer to Extended Leave Time (ELT) for additional information.

Supplemental Short-Term Disability Insurance

Full-time and part-time, benefit-eligible associates are eligible to purchase voluntary, supplemental short-term disability insurance at their own expense.

An associate who purchases voluntary, supplemental short-term disability insurance is eligible for up to $66^{2/3}$ percent of their base pay up to a maximum of \$1,000 per week (the \$170 Statutory Disability benefit is deducted from the maximum weekly benefit).

How to Apply for Short-Term Disability Benefits

To file for short-term disability benefits, an associate must contact Sun Life and they will provide the associate with the necessary information to file a claim by phone. The associate is responsible for filing his or her claim within 30 days after the disability occurs and providing all necessary medical documentation to the insurance provider in a timely manner. All information provided to Sun Life is held in the strictest of confidence.

Extended Leave Time (ELT)

Extended Leave Time (ELT) provides salary continuation for full-time and part-time, benefit-eligible associates on a qualified disability leave. (Note: Associates will also be eligible to use their extended leave time (ELT) benefit for their own continuous military leave of absence. See: *Military Leave of Absence Section*.)

The maximum amount of ELT that an associate will receive is based on his or her length of service as of the January 1st prior to disability. ELT will not accrue but will be replenished each January 1st. Associates hired after January 1st will receive their ELT benefits beginning on January 1st the following year. Associates will receive their increase in ELT benefits on January 1st following completion of each length of service tier.

Length of Service (years)	Maximum Paid Extended Leave (weeks)
0-3	2
3+ -10	5



10+ - 15	7
15+ - 20	9
20+	11

^{*}Chart based on full-time status

Frozen Sick Bank

Associates may have a frozen sick bank, which includes sick time accrued prior to the company's Paid Time Off (PTO) Program conversion and/or year-end converted PTO time. An associate may only utilize this time if they are on a qualified disability and has exhausted his or her extended leave time (ELT). Frozen sick banks will not be paid out at termination.

Long-Term Disability

The company provides (company-paid) long-term disability coverage to eligible associates whose qualified short-term disability exceeds 26 weeks. Associates may qualify for a benefit equal to $66^{2/3}$ percent of their average monthly wage up to a maximum of \$20,000 per month.

How to Apply for Long-Term Disability Benefits

If an associate's medical leave is expected to last beyond five (5) months, the associate should contact both the Long-Term Disability benefit provider and Sun Life to inquire and potentially apply for benefits.

Tax Choice Option

The company offers two tax choice options for long-term disability insurance:

- Taxable option the company pays the long-term disability premium on a pre-tax basis and any disability benefit received by the associate is taxable income.
- Tax-Free option the company pays the long-term disability premium on an after-tax basis (premium will be reported on associate's W-2 as income and associate will pay the tax on that amount) and any disability benefit received by the associate is tax free.

Associates have the option to elect or change the tax choice option during new hire orientation and during annual Open Enrollment.

Benefits During Medical Leaves of Absence

Statutory and voluntarily benefits begin on the first day after an associate's ELT and frozen sick bank are exhausted. Associates utilizing PTO to supplement the difference in pay received from these benefits at no time can be paid more than their regularly scheduled weekly paycheck.)

An associate's approved medical leave of absence may also qualify as an approved leave under the Family and Medical Leave (FMLA). These leaves of absence run concurrently, and the associate will be responsible for providing the FMLA certification forms as required by Sun Life. Associates should review the <u>Corporate Family and Medical Act (FMLA) Policy #A091207340</u> in the handbook for eligibility and benefits.

Associates on a qualified disability will have medical and dental insurance coverage continued for a



period of up to three months beyond any regulatory-required leave. If an associate is approved for an extended leave of absence as a reasonable accommodation beyond any of these periods, the associate is no longer eligible for employer-sponsored medical and dental coverage and will be offered COBRA. See the section on COBRA for additional information.

Associates utilizing their PTO during an approved medical leave of absence will be entered in by the Leaves Generalist when 1 hour or greater is available. If the associate's medical leave also qualifies under the New York Paid Sick Leave (NYPSL) associates can elect to have that PTO designated as New York Paid Sick Leave (NYPSL). An associate continues to accumulate PTO for all hours paid while utilizing PTO and Frozen Sick Bank. Associates will not continue to accumulate PTO when using ELT during an approved medical leave of absence. If an associate on a medical leave of absence is unpaid (not being paid through the company) for the full business days immediately prior to and immediately after a holiday, they will not be paid for the company-designated holiday.

Length of Absence and Returning to Work

Associates on a qualified disability may be approved for a medical leave of absence for a period of up to three months beyond any regulatory-required leave. Associates are expected to return to work at the conclusion of the approved leave period and if the associate unable to return, it is the associate's responsibility to contact Sun Life prior to the expected return to work date. Associates are expected to provide Sun Life all necessary documentation including a return to work note if the associate is able to return to work prior to the end of the approved leave period, or any updated medical documentation to Sun Life to review for continuation/extension of the leave. If an associate fails to notify Sun Life and/or to provide necessary medical documentation for continuation/extension of the leave, the associate can no longer be continued on a leave of absence and will be separated from employment. The associate is also responsible for providing documentation to Sun Life If the associate has restrictions for returning to work or is requesting a reasonable accommodation. The company will engage in the interactive process with the associate to review the requested restrictions or accommodation which could include a request for an extension of leave that extends beyond the periods outlined in the policy.

For more information, see the *Corporate Medical Leaves of Absence Policy #A091207339*.

Worker's Compensation

Associates who sustain work-related injuries must immediately inform their department leader, Human Resources (HR) and facilities physical security department at extension 4828 (716-635-4828). No matter how minor an on-the-job injury may appear, it is important that it is reported immediately. An Incident Report is located on Inside IH and should be completed, signed and forwarded to Human Resources (HR) within 24 hours of the incident. This will enable an eligible associate to qualify for coverage as quickly as possible.



The company provides a comprehensive workers' compensation program at no cost to associates. The program covers any injury or illness sustained in the course of employment that requires medical, surgical, or hospital treatment.

To be eligible to be paid for the company-designated holiday, while on a worker's compensation leave of absence, the associate must be receiving a paycheck from the company. If an associate is not working or utilizing any paid time off (PTO) during the pay week that contains a holiday, they will not be paid for the company-designated holiday.

Neither the company nor the insurance carrier will be liable for the payment of workers' compensation benefits for injuries that occur during an associate's voluntary participation in any off-duty, recreational, social or athletic activity. However, neither the company nor the insurance carrier will be liable for the payment of workers' compensation benefits for injuries that occur during an associate's voluntary participation in any off-duty, recreational, social or athletic activity.

Corporate Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA) Policy

The company provides family and medical leave in accordance with the Family Medical Leave Act of 1993 and its amendments as follows:

Eligibility for Leave

An associate is eligible to request available FMLA if they have been **employed by the Company** for at least 12 months and has worked at least 1,250 hours during the 12-month period immediately preceding the leave.

Qualifying Circumstances for Leave

An eligible associate is entitled to take FMLA for one or more of the following:

- New Child the birth of a child or the placement of the child for adoption or foster care or to bond with a child within one year of birth or placement
- Serious Health Condition of Family Member Because the associate's spouse, child or parent (but not parent "in-law") requires care if such family member has a "serious health condition";
- Serious Health Condition of Associate Because of a "serious health condition" that makes the
 associate unable to perform an essential function of his or her position.
- Qualifying Exigency (as interpreted by the Family and Medical Leave Act) Because the
 associate's spouse, son, daughter or parent who is a member of the Armed Forces (including
 National Guard or Reserves) is on covered active duty, called to covered active-duty status or
 has been notified of an impending call or order to a covered active duty.
- Military Caregiver Leave to care for a covered service member with a serious injury or illness
 if the eligible employee is the service member's spouse, son, daughter, parent, or next of kin.

Amount of Leave

Eligible associates are limited to a total of 12 work weeks of FMLA during any 12-month period. This is a "rolling" 12-month period which is measured backwards from the dates of any requested leave.



Exception to FMLA Twelve Week Maximum

Military Caregiver leave allows an eligible associate of a covered service member to take up to a total of 26 workweeks of leave during a single 12-month period to provide care for the covered service member. The single 12-month period begins on the first day that the leave is taken. An eligible associate is limited to a combined total of 26 workweeks of leave for any FMLA- qualifying reasons during the single 12-month period.

Eligible spouses who work for the same company are limited to a combined total of 12 workweeks of leave in a 12-month period to share for the following FMLA-qualifying reasons:

- o the birth of child or bonding with a newborn child;
- the placement of a child with the associate for adoption or foster care; and bonding with the newly-placed child, and

Eligible spouses who work for the same company are also limited to a combined total of 26 workweeks in a single 12-month period under military caregivers leave. If only one of the spouses is eligible for FMLA leave, that individual is entitled to the full twelve workweeks of leave.

<u>NOTE:</u> FMLA leave runs concurrently with any other qualified medical leave of absence and New York Paid Family Leave. However, an associate can elect if they want to use their to use NY PSL concurrently with their FMLA leave.

Compensation and Benefits during FMLA Leave

FMLA leave is an unpaid benefit. If, however, the associate has accrued paid leave (i.e., PTO), the paid leave will run concurrently with his or her FMLA leave. However, an associate can elect if they want that PTO to be designated as New York Paid Sick Leave (NYPSL). An exempt associate who takes unpaid leave under FMLA will not be paid their full salary for the weeks the associate takes the unpaid leave. The exempt associate will be paid a proportionate part of their full salary for time actually worked during those weeks. Any paid leave used for an FMLA qualifying reason, including New York Paid Family Leave, will be charged against the associate's entitlement to FMLA leave. The substitution of paid leave for unpaid leave does not extend the FMLA leave period.

The Company will continue making contributions to maintain an associate's coverage under their group health plan during an approved FMLA leave at the same level and under the same conditions as if the associate had continued to work. During any period of FMLA leave, the associate will continue to be responsible for paying their individual benefits contribution required to maintain their active benefit status. The company reserves the right to recover the associate's share of any premium payments missed during the course of their FMLA leave. If the associate does not receive a company paycheck from which their benefit contributions can be deducted, the associate is still responsible for these payment(s) and the associate will have additional deductions upon their return to work for any missed deductions during this period. Further, if an associate fails to return to work after their FMLA leave entitlement expires, the company may, under certain circumstances, seek reimbursement of its share



of contributions paid during the period of FMLA leave.

FMLA is treated as continuous service (i.e., no break in service) solely for purposes of vesting and eligibility to participate in any company pension or 401(k) plan. Associates continue to accrue PTO while on FMLA if they are utilizing **paid time off** during this time. Regular payroll deductions continue while an associate is utilizing paid time off while on FMLA. Associate can elect to stop coverage during unpaid FMLA or they can continue their coverage during the unpaid FMLA and any missed deductions will be made up upon the associate's return to work. To be eligible to be paid for the company-designated holiday, the associate must be utilizing paid time off in the pay week that contains the holiday. If an associate on FMLA is not utilizing any paid time off during the pay week that contains a holiday, they will not be paid for the company designated holiday.

<u>Note</u>: The holiday, regardless of whether the associate receives pay or not, still counts towards the FMLA leave entitlement.

Notice of Leave

An associate must contact Sun Life to begin the process for requesting FMLA. If the need for FMLA is foreseeable, an associate must give Sun Life at least 30 days' advance written notice. If this is not possible, associates must at least give notice as soon as practicable and generally must comply with department's normal call in procedures. Failure to provide such notice may be grounds for delay of leave. All information provided to Sun Life is held in the strictest of confidence.

Use of Leave

In most cases, associates take FMLA in a single, continuous block of time. Leave for a new child may be taken on an intermittent or reduced schedule during the child's first year only if this is agreed to by the associate's department leader and the human resources business partner. Associates are otherwise entitled to take intermittent or reduced scheduled leave only if the leave is because of the serious health condition of a family member or the associate, and the intermittent or reduced leave schedule is medically necessary.

Associates on approved intermittent leave must schedule their leave with as much advance notice as possible to minimize disruption to their work schedule and assignments. For planned medical treatments/appointments requiring intermittent leave, associates shall make a reasonable effort to schedule the treatment so as not to disrupt unduly the operations of the business, subject to the approval of the associate's health care provider or covered family member or service member's health care provider, as appropriate. All associates are responsible for complying with their departmental callin procedures for providing required notice of an unforeseen absence from work.

All accrued PTO must be exhausted prior to intermittent FMLA being unpaid.

Certification

Associates who request leave because of a serious health condition, a qualifying exigency or to care for a covered service member with a serious injury or illness are required to submit supporting certification to SunLife. It is the responsibility of the associate to ensure that their FMLA certification is up to date.



The associate must submit the completed certification as soon as possible, no later than 15 calendar days after receiving the form. Failure to provide requested certification in a timely manner may result in denial of leave until certification is provided and any absences will be considered unauthorized under the FMLA which may result in disciplinary action, up to and including termination. The company has the right to request additional clarification or recertification at any time if it becomes necessary in accordance with the provisions of the FMLA.

Leave Period and Return to Work

Sun Life will provide the associate notice of the approved leave period and associates are expected to return to work upon conclusion of the approved leave period. Associates are expected to return to work at the conclusion of the approved leave period. If an associate is unable to return at the conclusion of this period, it is the associate's responsibility to contact SunLife prior to the expected return to work date and the associate may be required to provide recertification for extension of the leave. If an associate fails to notify SunLife and/or provide any necessary recertification when requested for continuation of the leave, the associate can no longer be continued on the leave of absence and will be considered voluntarily separated from employment.

If the associate is out on leave due to their own serious health condition and is able to return to work prior to the end of the approved leave period, a return-to-work document must be provided to Sun Life before the associate's first day back to work. The return-to-work document must be specific and state only the actual return to work date, any work restrictions, and anticipated length of restrictions. If the associate has restrictions for returning to work or is requesting a reasonable accommodation, Sun Life will forward this to Leaves@independenthealth.com so the company can engage in the interactive process with the associate and work in consultation with the associate's department leader and human resources business partner to review the requested restrictions or accommodation and approve (or provide alternatives) or deny the request based on business need and whether it presents an undue hardship. A request for an extension of leave that extends beyond the periods outlined in this policy will be reviewed for a reasonable accommodation. We will individually evaluate each associate's situation and engage in the interactive process to determine whether additional leave may be granted.

Unlawful Acts

The FMLA does not affect federal or state laws prohibiting discrimination, or in any way supersede any federal or state law or collective bargaining agreement which provides greater family or medical leave rights. The FMLA makes it unlawful for an employer to interfere with, restrain, or deny the exercise of rights under the FMLA, or to discharge or discriminate against any person for opposing any practice made unlawful under the FMLA or for involvement in any proceeding under or relating to the FMLA.

Procedure

Once an associate's request for FMLA has been received and approved, SunLife will keep a file with all appropriate documents and the leaves Generalist will administer timecards for associates out on leave, 3-1-22



including entering available PTO (when 1 hour or greater is available). If FMLA is intermittent, the associate is responsible for recording time used on his or her timecard to PTO if available or otherwise Other Non-Paid hours, which would be approved by the associate's manager and human resources. For further information, associates should contact SunLife or Leaves@independenthealth.com.

Definitions

Employed by the Company- at least 12 months with the company and/or its subsidiaries and affiliated organizations or temporary service with the company.

Child- A son or daughter is defined by the **FMLA** regulations as a biological, adopted, or foster **child**, a stepchild, a legal ward, or a **child** of a person standing in loco parentis who is either **under** 18 years of age or is 18 years of age or older and incapable of self-care because of a mental or physical disability at the time **FMLA** leave is to commence. Note: The FMLA regulations provide separate definitions of "son or daughter" for its military family leave provisions that are not restricted by age.

Covered Service member- is a current member of the Armed Forces, including a member of the National Guard or Reserves, who is receiving medical treatment, recuperation, or therapy, or is in outpatient status, or is on the temporary disability retired list for a serious injury or illness.

Paid Time OFF- PTO, frozen sick leave or ELT

Qualifying exigency-as interpreted by the Family Medical Leave Act- in the following categories: short notice deployment, military events and related activities, childcare and related activities, care of the military member's parent, financial and legal arrangements, counseling, temporary rest and recuperation, certain post-deployment activities.

Serious health condition refers to an illness, injury, impairment or physical or mental condition that: (a) involves inpatient care in a hospital, hospice or residential medical care facility, or (b) involves continuing treatment by a healthcare provider and either requires an absence from work, school or other regular activities of more than three (3) consecutive calendar days or would require such extended absence if continuing medical treatment was not received. An example is a cancer condition that would require long-term absence from work except that the associate is receiving periodic chemotherapy treatments.

Serious injury or illness- is one that is suffered while on active duty that may render the service member to be medically unfit to perform the duties of the service member's office, grade, rank or rating. It also includes injuries or illnesses that existed before the service member's active duty and that were aggravated by service in the line duty on active duty.

Spouse- includes same sex spouse (for legally married same-sex couples)

Corporate Paid Family Leave (PFL) Policy

The company provides eligible associates working in New York State, a paid leave of absence under the New York Paid Family Leave ("PFL") law when they need time off to care for a family member, bond with



a child or for certain qualifying exigencies. This policy provides information concerning PFL entitlements and obligations.

Eligibility for PFL

PFL is available to "eligible associates." To be eligible, associates must have:

1. A regular schedule of twenty (20) or more hours per week; and have been employed for at least twenty-six (26) consecutive weeks prior to the date PFL leave begins;

OR

2. A regular schedule of less than twenty (20) hours per week; and worked at least one hundred seventy-five (175) days prior to the date PFL leave begins.

Qualifying Circumstances for Leave

An eligible associate is entitled to take PFL for one or more of the following:

- <u>Care</u>- To participate in providing care, including physical or psychological care, for the associate's
 family member (child, spouse, domestic partner, parent, grandchild, grandparent or parent of a
 spouse or domestic partner) with a serious health condition;
- Bond- To bond with the associate's child during the first twelve (12) months after the child's birth, adoption or foster care placement; and/or
- Qualifying Exigency- (as interpreted by the Family and Medical Leave Act) Because the associate's spouse, child or parent who is a member of the Armed Forces (including National Guard or Reserves) is on covered active duty, called to covered active-duty status or has been notified of an impending call or order to a covered active duty. "Qualifying exigencies" may include attending certain military events, arranging for alternative childcare, addressing certain financial and legal arrangements, attending certain counseling sessions, caring for the parents of the military member on covered active duty and attending post-deployment reintegration briefings.

Duration of Leave

PFL provides eligible associates up to twelve (12) weeks paid leave within any fifty-two (52) consecutive week period. The fifty-two (52) consecutive week period is determined retroactively with respect to each day for which PFL benefits are currently being claimed.

Associate Deductions

PFL benefits are financed through associate contributions via payroll deductions and are administered through our short-term disability carrier (the "Carrier").

Pay During Leave (PFL Benefits)

The weekly monetary benefit will be 67% of the associate's average weekly wage up to a cap of 67% of the current New York State average weekly wage

An associate who is eligible for both statutory short-term disability benefits and PFL during the same period of fifty-two (52) consecutive calendar weeks may not receive more than twenty-six (26) total weeks of disability and PFL benefits during that period of time. Short-term disability benefits and PFL benefits may not be used concurrently.



Use of Paid Family Leave

Associates do not need to use their PFL entitlement in a single continuous block of time. Leave can be taken intermittently in increments of at least one (1) full day for the PFL benefit. In the event that an associate takes intermittent leave in less than full day increments (as qualified under Family Medical Leave Act), when the total hours reach the number of hours in an associate's usual workday, one day of PFL will be deducted from the associate's annual available PFL entitlement.

Associates must make reasonable efforts to schedule intermittent or reduced leave so as not to unduly disrupt the Company's operations.

When PFL is taken in daily increments, the maximum number of days of the benefit allowed to the associate is calculated based on the average number of days the associate works per week by twelve (12) weeks.

Limitations if Both Spouses Are Employees

If both spouses work for the same Company and the leave requested is for the same family member, only one (1) spouse is permitted to take PFL to care for that family member at one time.

Associate PFL Leave Obligations

1. Requesting Paid Family Leave

Human Resources will administer PFL process on behalf of the Company. Associates must notify Sun Life of their need for PFL leave, as described below. The Carrier will make determinations of eligibility and benefits.

a. Notice of the Need for Leave

Associates are required to contact Sun Life via email or phone and either request PFL specifically or explain the reasons for leave in order to determine that the leave is potentially PFL-qualifying. Associates must provide sufficient information of the qualifying event and the anticipated timing and duration of the leave. Human Resources will complete the Request for Paid Family Leave Form (PFL-1) on behalf of the Company and return the form to the associate. It is the associate's responsibility to submit a timely and complete application for PFL to the Carrier with supporting documentation as outlined below.

b. Timing of Associate Notice of the Need for Leave

Associates must provide thirty (30) days advance notice of the need to take PFL when the need is foreseeable. When thirty (30) days' notice is not practicable for reasons such as lack of knowledge of approximately when leave will be required to begin, a change in circumstances, or a medical emergency, the associate must provide notice as soon as practicable and generally must comply with the department's normal call-in procedures. Associates who fail to give thirty (30) days' notice for foreseeable leave without a reasonable excuse for the delay, or otherwise fail to satisfy PFL notice obligations, may have PFL delayed or denied for a period of up to thirty (30) days from the date notice is provided.

2. Submit Documentation Supporting Need for PFL

In addition to submitting a Request for Paid Family Leave, associates are required to submit to the Carrier a Certification and/or Proof of Eligibility (as described below) that supports the specific type of PFL they are requesting. No PFL benefits shall be paid until the completed Request for Paid Family Leave, together with any necessary certification or proof of eligibility has been submitted. It is the associate's 3-1-22



responsibility to provide the Carrier with complete and sufficient certification.

- a. Certifications Supporting Leave to Care for Family Members
 - An associate requesting PFL because of a covered family member's serious health condition must complete a Release of Personal Health Information Under the Paid Family Leave Law Form (PFL-3) and supply a medical certification using the Health Care Provider Certification For Care of Family Member with Serious Health condition Form (PFL-4) supporting the need for such leave from the health care provider of the covered family member.
- b. Certifications Supporting Leave to Care for Qualifying Exigencies
 An associate requesting PFL because of a qualifying exigency must complete a Military Qualifying
 Event Form (PFL-5) and provide a copy of the military member's active duty orders or other
 documentation issued by the military which indicates that the military member is on covered active
 duty or call to covered active duty status, and the dates of the military member's covered active
 duty service.
- c. Proof of Eligibility for Leave Taken to Bond with a Child
 - i. Leave Requested by Birth Mother:
 - A birth mother requesting PFL to bond with a child must complete Bonding Certification Form (PFL-2) and provide supporting documentation either: (1) a birth certificate; or (2) if a birth certificate is unavailable, documentation of pregnancy or birth from a health care provider that includes the mother's name and the child's due date or birth date.
 - ii. Leave Requested by Parent Other Than Birth Mother
 - A parent (other than a birth mother) requesting PFL to bond with a child must complete a Bonding Certification Form (PFL-2) and provide supporting documentation: (1) a birth certificate; (2) If no birth certificate is available, a voluntary acknowledgment of paternity or court order of filiation; (3) If neither a birth certificate or voluntary acknowledgment is available, a copy of documentation of pregnancy or birth from a health care provider and a second document verifying the parent's relationship with the birth mother or child (i.e. marriage certificate, civil union documents, or domestic partner documents). If none of the above documents are available, a parent may submit other documentary evidence of parental relationship for evaluation on a case-by-case basis.
 - iii. Leave Sought by Adoptive Parent
 - An adoptive parent requesting PFL to bond with a child must complete a Bonding Certification Form (PFL-2) and provide supporting documentation: (1) a court document indicating that an adoption is in process or is being finalized; or (2) when leave is taken prior to completion of the adoption, a document evidencing that the adoption process is underway, including but not limited to, a signed statement from an attorney, adoption agency, or adoption-related social service provider that the employee is in the process of adopting a child. If the second parent is not named in the above document(s), the employee must provide both a copy of the document evidencing the adoption, and a second document verifying the relationship to the parent named in the document (i.e. marriage certificate, civil union documents, or domestic partnership documents).
 - iv. Leave Sought by Foster Parent
 - A foster parent requesting PFL to bond with a child must complete a Bonding Certification Form (PFL-2) and provide a letter of placement issued by the county or city department of social services or local volunteer agency. If the associate is not named in the placement



document, the associate must submit both a copy of the document evidencing the placement, and a second document verifying the relationship to the parent named in the document (i.e., marriage certificate, civil union documents, or domestic partnership documents).

3. Leave Period and Return to Work

Sun Life will provide the associate notice of the approved leave period and associates are expected to return to work upon conclusion of the approved leave period. If an associate is unable to return at the conclusion of this period, it is the associate's responsibility to contact SunLife <u>prior</u> to the expected return to work date and the associate may be required to provide recertification for extension of the leave. If an associate fails to notify SunLife and/or provide any necessary recertification when requested for continuation of the leave, the associate can no longer be continued on the leave of absence and will be considered voluntarily separated from employment.

Leave Concurrent with Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) or Other Leave Policies

For the companies that are a covered FMLA employer, the Company will require an associate whose leave qualifies under both the FMLA and PFL, to take PFL concurrently with any leave taken pursuant to the FMLA and such leaves may not be stacked. Additionally, when the Paid Family Leave is also designated as FMLA, the associate will be required to use accrued paid time off in accordance with the Corporate Family Medical Leave Act Policy #A091207340. In the event that an associate takes intermittent leave in less than full day increments (as qualified under Family Medical Leave Act), when the total hours reach the number of hours in an associate's usual workday, one day of PFL can be deducted from the associate's annual available PFL entitlement.

The PFL does not affect any federal, state or local law prohibiting discrimination, or supersede any federal, state or local law which provides greater family leave rights. For additional information concerning leave entitlements and obligations that might arise when PFL is either not available or exhausted, please consult the other leave policies referenced in this policy or your Associate Handbook or contact Leaves@independenthealth.com.

Use of Paid Time Off (PTO)

When PFL does not qualify as FMLA leave, associates may choose to use, but are not required to use accrued unused paid time off (PTO). Associates who elect to use their PTO and/or have that PTO designated as New York Paid Sick Leave (NYPSL) to offset the difference between their regular pay and the amount received for Paid Family Leave should contact leaves@independenthealth.com. Associates will not be permitted to receive PFL benefits and/or pay in excess of their full salary.

Where time off qualifies as both PFL and FMLA leave, associates are required to utilize accrued paid leave (PTO), as outlined in the <u>Corporate Family Medical Leave Act Policy #A091207340</u> to supplement the PFL benefit vs. being unpaid. However, the associate can elect if they want that PTO time to be designated as New York Paid Sick Leave (NYPSL).

Associates will not accrue any paid time off while out on PFL unless utilizing PTO. The substitution of paid 3-1-22



leave for unpaid leave does not extend the PFL entitlement and the paid time will run concurrently with an associate's PFL entitlement, to the maximum extent permissible under the law.

When the associate elects to charge all or part of their family leave time to unused paid time off and receives his or her full salary, the company will request reimbursement from the carrier for family leave benefits by filing a claim for reimbursement prior to the carrier paying such benefits.

Benefits Protection

The Company will continue making contributions to maintain an associate's coverage under their group health plan during an approved PFL leave at the same level and under the same conditions as if the associate had continued to work. During any period of PFL leave, the associate will continue to be responsible for paying their individual benefits contribution required to maintain their active benefit status. The company reserves the right to recover the associate's share of any premium payments missed during the course of their PFL leave. If the associate does not receive a company paycheck from which their benefit contributions can be deducted, the associate is still responsible for these payment(s) and the associate will have additional deductions upon their return to work for any missed deductions during this period. Further, if an associate fails to return to work after their PFL leave entitlement expires, the company may, under certain circumstances, seek reimbursement of its share of contributions paid during the period of PFL leave.

PFL is treated as continuous service (i.e., no break in service) solely for purposes of vesting and eligibility to participate in any company pension or 401(k) plan. Associates continue to accrue PTO while on PFL if they are being **paid time off** during this time. Regular payroll deductions continue while an associate is utilizing paid time off while on **PFL**. To be eligible to be paid for the company-designated holiday, the associate must be utilizing paid time off in the pay week that contains the holiday. If an associate on PFL is not utilizing any paid time off during the pay week that contains a holiday, they will not be paid for the company designated holiday.

Note: The holiday, regardless of whether the associate is using PTO or receiving the PFL benefit, still counts towards the associate's PFL entitlement.

Restoration of Employment and Benefits

Under most circumstances an associate who exercises his or her right to PFL will, upon the expiration of that leave, be entitled to be restored to the position held by the associate when the leave commenced, or to a comparable position with comparable benefits, pay, and other terms and conditions of employment. The taking of leave covered by PFL will not result in the loss of any employment benefit accrued prior to the date on which the leave commenced. However, associates who fraudulently obtain PFL are not protected by the PFL's job restoration or maintenance of health benefits provisions and may be subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination of employment.

Waivers

An associate who may not be eligible for PFL has the option to file a waiver of PFL and therefore not be subject to deductions, but only when his or her regular employment is: (i) twenty (20) or more hours per week but the associate will not work twenty-six (26) consecutive weeks; or (ii) fewer than twenty (20) 3-1-22



hours per week and the associate will not work one hundred seventy-five (175) days in a fifty-two (52) consecutive week period. Waivers will be provided to associates who have schedule changes as outlined above and had not been previously eligible for PFL or to new hires at the time of hire who may not become eligible for PFL.

An associate's failure to submit a waiver within the prescribed timeframes may result in deductions being taken from the associate's paycheck and such deductions taken during this period will not be refunded to the associate.

If the associate's schedule/status changes so that they would be eligible for PFL, the waiver shall be automatically revoked and deductions of premium from the associate's pay, for the period of time the associate was covered by waiver shall become effective within eight (8) weeks of the change of status.

Questions about PFL

If you have questions regarding this PFL policy, please contact HR or Leaves@independenthealth.com. The Company is committed to complying with the PFL and, whenever necessary, shall interpret and apply this policy in a manner consistent with the PFL. The Company will not interfere, restrain or deny the exercise of any rights provided by PFL. If an associate feels that his or her PFL rights have been violated they should immediately report the matter to Leaves@independenthealth.com.

Definitions

Paid Time Off- PTO, frozen sick leave or ELT

Serious Health Condition- is an illness, injury, impairment, or physical or mental condition that involves: (a) inpatient care in a hospital, hospice or residential health care facility; or (b) continuing treatment or continuing supervision by a health care provider. Subject to certain conditions, the continuing treatment or continuing supervision requirement may be met by a period of incapacity of more than three (3) consecutive full days during which a family member is unable to work, attend school, perform regular daily activities or is otherwise incapacitated due to illness, injury, impairment or physical or mental conditions, and any subsequent treatment or period of incapacity relating to the same condition, that also involves: (a) treatment two (2) or more times by a health care provider; or (b) treatment on at least one (1) occasion by a health care provider, which results in a regimen of continuing treatment under the supervision of the health care provider. The continuing treatment or continuing supervision requirement also may be met by any period during which a family member is unable to work, attend school, perform regular daily activities, or is otherwise incapacitated due to a chronic serious health condition or an illness, injury, impairment, or physical or mental condition for which treatment may not be effective. A chronic serious health condition is one which: (a) requires periodic visits for treatment by a health care provider; (b) continues over an extended period of time (including recurring episodes of a single underlying condition); and (c) may cause episodic rather than a continuing period of incapacity. Examples of such episodic incapacity include but are not limited to asthma, diabetes, and epilepsy. Other conditions may meet the definition of continuing treatment. Serious health condition has been expanded to also include preparation and recovery from surgery related to organ or tissue donation.

COVID-19 Leave Policy



Associates may be entitled to additional benefits and job protections due to New York legislation for COVID-19 under the Paid Family Leave in the event they, or their minor dependent child, are subject to a mandatory or precautionary order of quarantine or isolation due to COVID-19 and unable to work remotely or for associates who have an eligible family member who contracts COVID-19 may be able to take Family Care to care for them. The time off for this COVID-19 leave is separate from the New York Paid Sick Leave (NYPSL) time that is outlined in the *Paid Time Off Policy #A101213052*.

Associates should review the <u>Corporate Paid Family Leave (PFL) & COVID-19 Leave Policy</u> #A20171208077 for eligibility requirements and can contact their HR Generalist or <u>Leaves@independenthealth.com</u> to apply for benefits.

Mandated Leaves/Absences from Work

The company is committed to providing eligible associates time away from work as may be required by law or regulation. Leaves mandated by state law or regulation outlined below may vary for remote associates as they are generally subject to the laws of their city and state where they are physically located and perform work. Depending on the nature of the absence from work, the leave may be paid or unpaid. All associates are expected to provide reasonable notice when needing such leave as outlined below. An associate who requires a leave of absence due to a medical condition that may be covered under Disability, FMLA or Workers Compensation should consult those applicable sections in the handbook.

Blood/Bone Marrow Donation Leave

The company will provide unpaid leave, not to exceed three (3) hours, once annually, for interested associates to donate blood. Associates should request this leave at least three (3) workdays prior to the leave. In addition, the company will allow associates unpaid leaves of absence up to 24 work hours in length for purposes of undergoing a medical procedure to donate bone marrow. Requests for leave to donate bone marrow should be made as far in advance as practicable. The company reserves the right to request sufficient documentation to substantiate an associate's leave to donate blood or blood marrow.

Emergency Responders

The company will provide unpaid leave to associates who are volunteer firefighters or volunteer ambulance personnel when these associates request time off to respond to certain emergency situations such as a declaration of a local or state emergency under New York Executive Law unless the associate's absence would create an undue hardship on the business. Associates may take unpaid excused leave or may choose to use paid PTO for this absence. Associates must provide written documentation from the head of the fire department or ambulance service certifying the period of time the associate responded to the emergency.

Jury Duty

All full-time and part-time, benefit-eligible associates are eligible for paid time away from work for jury duty service.

Eligible associates will receive their regular pay for up to four (4) weeks, provided that the associate



reports to work whenever not in court attendance. Part-time associates paid time away from work will be pro-rated as based on their FTE percentage. Associates cannot accept any additional compensation received from jury duty while receiving their regular pay. When an associate is called for jury duty, the associate will be excused from regular job duties on the days required to appear in court. The associate will be paid for any regularly scheduled workdays for jury duty. The jury summons should be given to the department leader as soon as possible so that arrangements can be made to accommodate the absence. After completion of jury duty service, the court will provide additional proof of service, which should be turned in to the department leader on the next scheduled workday.

Part-time, non-benefit-eligible/per diem associates, contractors, consultants and leased associates are not eligible for the company paid time away from work but will receive state mandated jury benefits.

Military Leave of Absence

The company provides strong value to military personnel and others who serve our country. The Uniformed Services Employment and Re-employment Rights Act of 1994 (USERRA) outlines re-employment and benefit rights to associates who leave their job and return from uniformed service.

Notice of Leave

Written or verbal notice must be given in advance of the service. When precluded by military necessity or under other circumstances where it is impossible or unreasonable to give notice, notice is not required.

Amount of Leave

The cumulative length of the military leave when combined with all previous military leaves cannot exceed five (5) years. Military leave is unpaid. Associates are paid through the actual last day of work prior to entering the service.

Benefits During Military Leave

Under our policy, your benefits will continue for a period of up to six months, however, under USERRA, you have the ability to continue your health coverage during your military leave up to 24 months. If your leave will extend beyond six months, you will be offered the opportunity for continuation of health coverage and life insurance will be available to you on a conversion basis. Associates who make a reapplication for employment after military leave will be treated as not having incurred any break in service.

PTO & ELT

Paid Time Off (PTO) may be used during the period of military leave.

Associates will also be eligible to use their extended leave time (ELT) benefit to provide salary continuation for a continuous military leave of absence that extends beyond one week. To be eligible for the benefit, the associate must provide orders and utilize PTO for the first week of the military leave of absence. The ELT benefit may be used one time per order.

Retirement and Investment Plan (401(k))

Associates who return from a military leave may make contributions to their company 401(k) to make up contributions that would have been made had the associate remained continuously employed. A



returned associate has three (3) times the length of military leave, up to a five-year maximum, to make the contributions.

Reapplication for Employment for Uniformed Service

The time limits for reporting to the employer after release from uniformed service are as follows:

- 1. No later than the first full regular scheduled workday following completion of uniformed service plus an 8-hour transition period if the uniformed service was for less than 31 days.
- 2. No later than the first full regularly scheduled workday following the completion of the uniformed service plus an 8-hour transition period if the military leave was for an examination to determine fitness to perform in the uniformed services.
- 3. No later than 14 days following the completion of service if an individual's service was more than 30 days but less than 181 days.
- 4. No later than 90 days after the completion of service if any individual's service was for more than 180 days.

Associates should contact <u>Leaves@independenthealth.com</u> within these timeframes outlined above and must also submit a certificate of discharge showing satisfactory completion of military service to return to work. Reinstatement rights are terminated for any associate who fails to timely notify the company of availability to return to work and proof of discharge from military service.

New York COVID-19 Vaccine Leave

Consistent with New York law, Independent Health will provide sufficient time off for associates to receive COVID-19 vaccination or boosters. Associates should receive advance approval from their supervisor for this time away from work and can request this time in workday (not to exceed four hours). Associates are required to provide their updated vaccine documentation to covid_documentation@independenthealth.com

Rights of Nursing Mothers

Consistent with New York law, the company will provide reasonable unpaid break time or permit an associate to use paid break time or her meal period each day to express breast milk for her nursing child up to three (3) years following the child's birth. Reasonable efforts will be made to provide a room or other location in close proximity to the work area where the associate can express breast milk in privacy. The company will not discriminate in any way against an associate who chooses to express breast milk consistent with this policy.

Victims of Domestic Violence

Consistent with New York law, reasonable accommodations will be provided to an associate who is known by the company be a victim of domestic violence, unless doing so would provide an undue hardship. The associate will be provided reasonable time off to seek medical attention for injuries caused by domestic violence, to obtain services from a domestic violence shelter, program or rape crisis center, to obtain psychological counseling related to an incident of domestic violence, to participate in safety planning or to take other actions to increase safety from future incidents of domestic violence and to obtain legal services, assist in the prosecution of the offense or appear in court in relation to the incident

Independent Health.

of domestic violence. Associates who are in need of an accommodation to be absent from work must provide advance notice to Leaves@independenthealth.com and if advance notice is not feasible, the associate must provide a certification to within a reasonable time after the absence, such as a police report; court order; or documentation from a medical professional, advocate or counselor. The associate will be required to utilize any paid time off (PTO) that they have available; if no paid time off is available, the time off will be treated as leave without pay. The company will not discriminate with respect to victims of domestic violence in the workplace.

Voting Time Off

If an associate does not have sufficient time to vote in a public election before or after working hours, The company will pay an associate for up two (2) hours of absence from regularly scheduled work that is necessary to enable the associate time to vote. Associates must give at least two (2) working days' notice to their supervisor or department leader of the need to have time off to vote.

Witness Duty

Upon advance notice, the company will provide associates with unpaid leave to appear as a witness in a criminal proceeding, consult with a district attorney or exercise rights as the victim of a crime. An associate may be asked to provide sufficient documentation to verify the reasons for such an absence.

Other Types of Leaves

Bereavement Leave

The company provides paid bereavement leave for active, full-time and part-time, benefit-eligible associates. Part-time associates are allowed bereavement leave as outlined below and pro-rated as based on their FTE percentage.

Active, full-time associates are eligible for:

- Up to ten (10) business days for the death of a parent, child or spouse.
- Up to five (5) business days of bereavement leave for the death of a step-parent, step-children or siblings/step-siblings.
- Up to three (3) business days of bereavement leave for the death of an associate's mother-in-law, father-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, grandparents or grandchildren or for a ward for which the associate is the *legal guardian.
- One (1) business day of bereavement leave for the death of an aunt, uncle, niece, nephew, cousin, great-grandparent, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, spouse's grandparent, or any other relative with whom the associate was living with at the time of their death.

Associates who work non-traditional hours will account for bereavement time in hours, not to exceed 75, 37.5, 22.5, or 7.5 hours respectively.

*Typical situations for guardianship: incapacitated senior, guardianship for a minor and guardianship for developmentally disabled adults.



If deemed appropriate, human resources may require documentation to substantiate the relationship.

Where circumstances may require more than the standard amount of time off due to a death in the family, an associate may request to use Paid Time Off (PTO) if it is available. Any additional time off must be approved by the associate's department leader and human resources business partner.

Associates may be allowed up to four hours of bereavement leave to attend the funeral services of a fellow associate, subject to supervisor approval and provided such absence from duty will not interfere with normal operations of the company.

Personal Leave of Absence

Associates who need an extended period of time away from work for extenuating personal reasons have the option to request a personal leave of absence for up to four (4) weeks of unpaid leave. This specific leave request must be made by contacting Human Resources directly either at Leaves@independenthealth.com or your HR Generalist. When possible, requests should be made at least 30 days in advance of the leave of absence. A personal leave cannot be used to extend any other approved qualified leave of absence (i.e., FMLA, PFL, NYPSL, disability, etc.)

Associates must use any accrued PTO or any other eligible paid leave time (e.g., bereavement) before utilizing an unpaid personal leave of absence. If the associate fails to return to work at the conclusion of an approved leave of absence period, the associate shall be deemed to have resigned from employment and separated as of last date of approved leave.

For more details on a personal leave, please see <u>Personal Leave of Absence Policy A101222056</u>. Associates may also contact Leaves@independenthealth.com for additional information.

IN CONCLUSION

We care about your experience and satisfaction as an associate of the company. We hope this information is helpful to you. If you have any questions, please contact Human Resources (HR), your human resources business partner or generalist.

As a valued member of our team, thank you for helping the company achieve its mission, vision and values!



EXHIBIT I

Fraud Laws and Whistleblower Rights and Protections

The company has a comprehensive fraud and abuse program which is led by its Special Investigations Unit and is designed to detect, correct, prevent and report potentially illegal and fraudulent practices. One facet of the company's comprehensive fraud and abuse program provides our associates and certain contractors and their employees with detailed, educational information about a few of the fraud and abuse laws we are governed by and required by law to follow. Collectively, these laws and rules create a framework for the federal and state governments to detect and prevent fraud and abuse in the health care system and to protect the individuals and entities who provide information to the government about such fraud and abuse. The chart provided below contains important information for you about federal and state fraud and abuse laws and whistleblower protection laws.

Additional information about these laws can be obtained by contacting the Special Investigations Unit, Compliance or Legal Department. The company's 's fraud and abuse related policies are posted on Inside IH in the Policy Library located under Corporate Guides, Forms and Policies on the homepage and SIU Fraud and Abuse policies and business processes can be found on the SIU tab under Claims Operations on InsideIH. Associates who believe they have encountered fraud or a violation of law or any questionable activity are required to report it to the Special Investigations Unit at 1-800-665-1182.

FEDERAL LAW	SUMMARY
Federal False Claims Act	Key Definitions:
	A "claim" means any request or demand, whether under a
	contract or otherwise, for money or property and regardless of
	whether the United States government ("Government") has title
	to the property that is presented to the Government or to a
	Government contractor, grantee or other recipient if the money
	or property is going to be spent on the Government's behalf or in
	a way that advances any Government program or interest. This is
	an extremely broad definition.
	"Knowingly" means the person:
	1. has actual knowledge of the information;
	2. acts in deliberate ignorance of the truth or falsity of the information or
	3. acts in reckless disregard for the truth or falsity of the information.



To make a case against an individual or entity, the Government only
has to prove that the fraud against the Government occurred. The
Government does not have to prove the person or entity had a
specific mental state or intention to defraud the Government.

Types of False Claims:

- <u>DirectFalseClaims:</u> A civil lawsuit can be brought by the Government against any person who knowingly makes a false claim to obtain money or property, any part of which is provided to the Government directly or indirectly to a person, agent or contractor of the Government, a grantee of the Government or a recipient of any money or property from the Government.
- FalseRecords: A civil lawsuit can be brought by the Government against any person who knowingly makes, uses or causes to be made or used, a false record or statement material to a false or fraudulent claim. The word "material" means having a natural tendency to influence or be capable of influencing the payment or receipt of money or property. In order to make its case, the Government does not have to demonstrate a direct connection between the false record or statement and the Government's payment of a claim. In addition, a person or entity can be held responsible for damages in the amount of \$50,000 for each false record or statement.
- <u>Underpayments:</u> A civil lawsuit can be brought by the Government against any person who knowingly makes underpayments to the Government.
- <u>Certifications:</u> A civil lawsuit can be brought by the Government against any person who, with intention to defraud the Government, certifies receipt of Government money or property without completely knowing that the receipt is true and correct.
- ImproperPropertyTransfers: A civil lawsuit can be brought by the Government against any person who knowingly buys or receives as a pledge of an obligation or debt, public property from an officer or employee of the Government, who lawfully may not sell or pledge property.
- Overpayments: An overpayment means a health plan receives funds under the Medicare or Medicaid program and, after appropriate reconciliation; it retains them even though it is not



entitled to do that. Under the Federal False Claims Act, the company must report and return overpayments to the Secretary of the United States Department of Health and Human Services, New York State, a Government intermediary, carrier or contractor within 60 days of the date the overpayment was identified or the date any corresponding cost report is due, if any. When the company returns an overpayment, it must include a written statement indicating the reason why the overpayment is being returned. A civil lawsuit can be brought by the Government against any person who knowingly retains an overpayment when there was an obligation to repay the Government. This part of the False Claims Act is often referred to as a "reverse false claim."

 Anti-KickbackLawClaims: The Anti-Kickback Law is discussed in more detail later in this chart under the heading entitled "Federal Health Care Program Anti-Kickback Law.

Damages & Examples:

A person can be held responsible for damages for up to three times the amount of the damage the Government sustains plus mandatory penalties ranging from \$5,000 to \$10,000 (these penalty ranges can be adjusted for inflation) plus the costs of any civil lawsuit brought against them by the Government.

Some examples of potentially problematic activities under the Federal False Claims Act:

- Knowingly falsifying records that are then used to get a false claim paid (please note, the potential penalty for this type of violation is \$50,000 for each false record or statement).
- Double billing.
- Submitting bills for services that were never performed.
- Retention of an overpayment where there is an obligation to repay.
- Inaccurately reporting or certifying data in bids and rate proposals.
- Using inaccurate data to support reported claims experience and loss ratios.
- Failing to correctly report rating or discounts for similarly sized subscriber groups under Federal Employees Health Benefits (FEHB) programs.



Falsely certifying compliance with Medicaid Managed Care marketing or other program requirements.

- Manipulating provider or vendor dealings to distort reported claims experience in the company's government programs.
- Making any false statement, omission or misrepresentation in any application, bid or contract to participate in Medicare Advantage, Medicare Part D plan or Medicaid Managed Care (please note, the potential penalty for this type of violation is \$50,000 for each false statement or misrepresentation and not more than three times the total amount claimed for each item or service for which payments were received and was based on the application which contained the false statement).

Administrative Remedies for False Claims and Statements

Another false claims provision that works together with the Federal False Claims Act is called the Program Fraud and Civil Remedies Act. This provision expands the damages listed above so that a person who knowingly submits a false claim is liable for a civil penalty of up to \$5,000 for each false claim submitted and may also be subject to an "assessment" of up to twice the amount of each false claim submitted. The United States Attorney General's Office is responsible for investigating the allegations, filing the action, holding hearings, issuing subpoenas and collecting the penalties assessed.

Federal False Claims Act Qui Tam Lawsuits

The Federal False Claims Act allows "qui tam" actions. These lawsuits are brought by a private individual who knows about the fraud on behalf of the Government. The individual sues as an individual and on behalf of the Government. The individual who brings the lawsuit is called a "whistleblower" or a "qui tam relator."

How this works:

The individual files a lawsuit on behalf of the Government in a federal district court "under seal." "Under seal" means the lawsuit will be confidential when the Government investigates it and decides whether to join in the lawsuit. If the Government joins in the lawsuit, the lawsuit will be directed by the United States Department of Justice. If the Government does not join the lawsuit, the individual will continue to lead the lawsuit.

When:

Qui tam lawsuits must be filed by the individual within six years of the alleged violation or no more than three years after the date the

Government knows or reasonably should know about the alleged violation, but in no event more than 10 years after the violation was committed.

Awards:

If the Government joins in the lawsuit and it is successful, the individual may receive between 15 percent and 25 percent of the proceeds of the lawsuit. If the Government does not join in the lawsuit and the lawsuit is successful, the individual may receive between 25 percent and 30 percent of the proceeds.

Special Protections:

In addition to the financial awards provided to the individual, the Federal False Claims Act strives to make the individual whole and provide them with all relief necessary to do that such as employment reinstatement and providing back pay and other compensation due to his or her employer's retaliatory conduct against the individual for filing the qui tam lawsuit.

Federal Health Care Program Anti-Kickback Law

Individuals and entities can be held liable under the federal health care program anti-kickback law ("Anti-Kickback Law") for knowingly and willfully offering, paying, soliciting or receiving remuneration in exchange for referring, furnishing, purchasing, leasing or ordering any good, facility, service or item that is paid for in whole or in part by Medicare or Medicaid programs or other federal health care programs. Both the recipient of the remuneration and the individual or entity who offers the remuneration are subject to the Anti-Kickback Law. The Government does not have to prove that an individual or entity had a specific mental state or intention to violate the Anti-Kickback Law. This makes prosecuting these types of cases easier for the Government.

"Remuneration":

Remuneration means any kickback, bribe, discount, rebate made in cash or in kind, regardless of whether it was paid directly or indirectly. The Government defines the word remuneration very broadly. Remuneration that is intended to induce referrals is banned and so is remuneration that is intended to induce the purchasing, leasing, ordering or arranging for any good, facility, service or item paid for by a federal health care program.

Exceptions:

The Government has issued regulations that create a list of practices that do not violate the Anti-Kickback Law. These practices are



commonly referred to as "safe harbors." The safe harbors cover a small number of payment practices such as:

- the waiver of coinsurance and deductible amounts under certain specific conditions,
- giving incentives to individuals to promote the delivery of preventive care,
- remuneration which promotes access to care and which poses a low risk of harm to patients and federal health care programs,
- offering or transferring coupons and rebates or other retailer rewards for free or less than fair market value if certain conditions are met,
- offering or transferring items or services for free or less than market value if: (a) they are not offered through an advertisement, (b) they are not tied to an item or service that is reimbursable under a federal or state health care program, (c) there is a reasonable connection between the items or services offered and the individual's medical care, (d) the individual receiving the item or service is in financial need and
- as of January 1, 2011, the waiver of any copayment for the first prescription fill of a generic drug that is covered by Medicare Part D.

These are narrow exceptions to the Anti-Kickback Law's prohibited practices. If you would like more information about the Anti-Kickback Law's safe harbors, please contact an attorney in the Legal Department.

Damages:

A person or entity can be held criminally and/or civilly liable for violating the Anti-Kickback Law. The criminal penalty is a fine of up to \$25,000 and/or imprisonment of up to five years. An Anti-Kickback Law violator can also be excluded from participation in a Federal health care program. On the civil side, a person or entity can be required to pay the Government up to three times the amount of the total remuneration offered, paid, solicited or received plus a \$50,000 fine for each violation of the Anti-Kickback Law.



STATE LAW	SUMMARY
	Self-Reporting Violations: As a contractor of the United States Department of Health and Human Services ("HHS") Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services ("CMS") for various Medicare products, the company must report to the HHS Office of the Inspector General in writing and send a carbon copy to the CMS official in charge of the company's 's contract with CMS when it has credible evidence that one of its officers, directors, associates, agents or Medicare-related subcontractors has violated:
	 Federal criminal law involving fraud, conflict of interest, bribery or gratuity violations in Title 18 of the United States Code or The Federal False Claims Act.
	When making such reports to the Government, the company shall mark each page of its written report as "Confidential."
	Federal Audits: Federal law permits the HHS to audit the company for potential violations of a variety of federal fraud laws, regulations and rules. If the company does not grant the Government timely access to our facilities, records and systems so they can perform their audits, investigations and evaluations, the company can be subject to a penalty in the amount of \$15,000 per day.
New York False Claims Act	A civil lawsuit can be brought by the New York State Attorney General and/or any variety of local government against any person who does any of the following activities:
	 Knowingly presenting a false claim to the state or a local government or a Medicaid managed care plan; Knowingly making use of a false record to receive payment from the state or a local government or a Medicaid managed care plan; Conspiring to defraud the state or a local government by getting a claim paid;

3-1-22



Delivering, or causing to be delivered, to the state or a local government less property or money than the amount for which a person receives a Certificate of receipt, with an intent to defraud or willfully to conceal the property or money;

Making or delivering, with intent to defraud, a certifying receipt

to the state or local government without completely knowing that the information on the receipt is true;

- Knowingly buying or receiving as a pledge of an obligation or debt, public property from a state officer or employee knowing that the property may not be lawfully sold or pledged and
- Knowingly making, using or causing to be used a false record or statement to conceal, avoid or decrease an obligation of money or property to the state or a local government.

Damages: The person can be held responsible for damages for: (1) a civil penalty of \$6,000 to \$12,000 paid to the state, (2) three times the amount of damages the state suffers, (3) three times the amount of damages any local government suffers and (4) the cost of any civil lawsuits and attorney's fees brought to recover any such penalties and damages. A court may reduce treble damages to double damages if: (1) the violator furnishes all information to the officials who are investigating the violation within thirty days of the violator obtaining that information, (2) the violator fully cooperates with the government's investigation, and (3) at the time the violator provides the information, no criminal, civil or administrative action had begun and the violator did not have actual knowledge of any investigation.

New York False Claims Act Qui Tam Lawsuits

Similar to the Federal False Claims Act, the State False Claims Act also allows "qui tam" actions.

These lawsuits are brought by an individual who knows about the fraud. This individual is called a "whistleblower" or a "qui tam relator." The government works with the individual and decides whether to get involved in the lawsuit.

How this works:

The individual files a lawsuit in New York State Supreme Court, a trial level court. The individual's complaint is "sealed" and kept confidential for at least 60 days. During that period of time, the government will investigate the complaint and decide whether to get involved in the case. The government may either: (1) take over the case completely and re-file the lawsuit in the name of the State of New York, (2) intervene in the lawsuit and help the individual who filed the lawsuit or



(3) decide not to participate at all. If the government decides to become involved in the case, the government will have the responsibility of trying the case to its completion or settling the case. The court will determine if a settlement is fair before it is finalized.

When:

Qui tam lawsuits must be filed by the individual within six years of the violation or three years after the date facts that are material to the case are known or reasonably should have been known to the government official charged with the responsibility to act in the circumstances, whichever occurs last. In no event may the lawsuit be brought later than 10 years after the violation was committed.

Awards:

If the government gets involved in the lawsuit and the lawsuit is successful, the individual is entitled to 15 percent to 25 percent of the total recovery or the settlement. If the government does not get involved in the lawsuit and the lawsuit is successful, the individual is entitled to 25 percent to 30 percent of the total recovery or the settlement. The court may also award reasonable costs and expenses, including attorney's fees. An individual's recovery may be reduced to 10 percent of the proceeds of the lawsuit or a settlement if the court finds that the lawsuit was based mainly on disclosures from someone other than the individual who started the lawsuit which are connected to allegations in a criminal, civil or administrative hearing or in a legislative or administrative report, hearing audit or investigation from the news media.

Special Protections:

If an employer discharges, demotes, suspends, threatens, harasses or otherwise discriminates against one of its employees for filing a State False Claims Act lawsuit, the employee is entitled to all relief necessary to put the person in the position they were in before the discrimination. For example, the employee may be entitled to reinstatement to a position they would have had but for the discrimination or two times the amount of back pay. An employee may file another lawsuit to get the relief needed to make them whole.

Unacceptable Practices Under Medicaid

New York State law makes knowingly submitting a false statement and claim a Class A misdemeanor under the New York State criminal law.



New York law also lists certain prohibited practices for companies and individuals involved in providing benefits or services to Medicaid recipients. The unacceptable practices include, but are not limited to: Making false claims for medical care or services; Making false statements relating to claims for payment for medical services or supplies; Failing to disclose information about the right to payment; Taking a medical assistance payment and using it for something other than medical assistance; Taking bribes and kickbacks and inappropriate referrals; Unacceptable recordkeeping practices; Submitting claims or accepting payments for medical care, services or supplies offered by a person who is not qualified to participate in the Medicaid program; Receiving additional payments for services or supplies for which a Medicaid claim has been made; Deceiving a Medicaid recipient in any way; Furnishing excessive medical care, services or supplies to a Medicaid recipient; Any conspiracy to do any the activities listed above and Unlawful discrimination against a Medicaid recipient. The New York State Department of Health ("DOH") is authorized to Recovery of Overpayments in the recover fraudulent overpayments, unauthorized payments and **Medicaid Program** otherwise inappropriate payments made in connection with Medicaid. In some cases, the DOH is authorized to recover the amount of the overpayment and impose a monetary penalty, while in other cases the DOH may only require either the overpayment or impose a penalty. When the DOH recovers overpayments, it may only recover the amount of the claim. If the DOH imposes a penalty the penalty cannot exceed \$10,000. Although, this \$10,000 limit can increase to \$30,000 in cases where the DOH has penalized the same individual during the previous five-year time frame. **Fraud Against** New York State criminal law contains specific provisions about fraud **Health Plan** against health plans. To be guilty of health care fraud against a health plan, a person must do the following: Act with intent to defraud a health plan; Knowingly and willfully provide materially false information or



omit information to request payments from a health plan for a health care item or service and

 Actually receive a payment they or another person is not entitled to receive.

If a person's actions satisfy those three elements, the person can be found guilty of health care fraud in the 5th degree. Health care fraud in the 5th degree is a Class A Misdemeanor. There are four other levels of health care fraud which increase in severity based on the commission of health care fraud in the 5th degree plus the amount of money the person receives from the health plan because of the fraud. The other levels of health care fraud ("HCF") against a New York health plan are listed below:

- 5th degree HCF + receipt of \$3,000 from the health plan = HCF in the 4th Degree
- 5th degree HCF + receipt of more than \$10,000 from the health plan = HCF in the 3rd Degree
- 5th degree HCF + receipt of more than \$50,000 from the health plan = HCF in the 2nd Degree
- 5th degree HCF + receipt of more than \$1,000,000 from the health plan = HCF in the 1st Degree

New York Whistleblower Protections

New York law prevents an employer from retaliating against or intimidating any employee for disclosing or threatening to disclose to a supervisor or a public body any activity, policy or practice of the employer that violates a law and presents a substantial and specific danger to public health or safety or which constitutes health care fraud.

Whistleblower protections apply if the workforce member has brought the issue to the attention of his or her supervisor, Human Resources or Compliance and has given the employer a reasonable opportunity to correct the activity, policy, or practice. However, a workforce member's good faith effort to notify the company is not required if there is:

- imminent and/or serious danger to the public health or safety;
- the workforce member reasonably believes reporting would result in a destruction of evidence or other concealment of the activity, policy, or practice;
- such activity, policy or practice could reasonably be expected to lead to endangering the welfare of a minor;



- the workforce member reasonably believes that reporting would result in physical harm to themselves or any other person; or
- The workforce member reasonably believes the company is already aware of the activity, policy or practice and will not correct such activity, policy, or practice

Remedies for the Employee:

An employee who was retaliated against by an employer in violation of the New York Labor Law Section 740 and 741 may bring a civil lawsuit in a New York State court against their employer within two years after the alleged retaliatory conduct. If the employee wins the lawsuit, a court may require any or all of the following actions by the employer: (1) stop the alleged violation of law, policy or practice; (2) reinstate the employee to their prior employment position an equivalent position or front pay in lieu thereof; (3) reinstate the employee's benefits and seniority rights; (4) offer the employee full compensation for lost wages, benefits and other remunerations; (5) pay the employee's reasonable costs, disbursements, and attorney's fees. (6) pay a civil money penalty of an amount not to exceed \$10,000; and, or (7) the payment by the employer of punitive damages, if the violation was willful, malicious or wanton.

Legal References:

Deficit Reduction Act of 2005, Employee Education about False Claims Recovery, 120 Stat. 4 (2006) (codified as 42U.S.C. §1396a(a)(68) (2006), 31 U.S.C. §3729 et. seq., 28 C.F.R. §85.3, 31 U.S.C. §3801 et. seq., 42 C.F.R.§423.504(B)(4)(vi)(H) (Medicare Part D Prescription Drug Benefit Regulations), 42 C.F.R. §1001.952, et. seq., 42 U.S.C. §1320a-7, 1320a-7a, 1320a-7b(b), 42 C.F.R. §1001.952 et. seq., Fraud Enforcement and Recovery Act of 2009, Pub. L. No. 111-21, §4, 123 stat. 1617 (2009) (codified as 31 U.S.C. §\$3729, 3730(h), 3732(c), 3733 (2009)) and Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act of 2010, Pub. L. No. 111-148, §§6402, 6408 and 10606, 124 Stat. 119 (2010) (codified as 42 U.S.C. §1320a-7k(d), 42 U.S.C. §1320a-7(b)(16)(g) and (h), 42 U.S.C. §1320a-7a(a)(8) and (9), (i)(6)(F)- (I), 18 U.S.C. §1347(b), 48 C.F.R. §52.203-13(b)(3).

New York State Finance Law §187-194, New York Social Services Law §366-b and 145-b(4), 18 NYCRR §515.2, New York Penal Law §177.00 – 177.30, New York Labor Law §740 and §741.



EXHIBIT II

Privacy Laws and Consumer Rights and Protections

The company has a comprehensive privacy program designed to protect member PHI and PII while ensuring compliance with required federal and state laws.

The list provided below contains important information for you about federal and state privacy protection laws. This list may not be comprehensive and is subject to change.

Additional information about these laws can be obtained by contacting the Information Risk Office.

Federal Laws

- 45 CFR Part 164 (HIPAA Privacy and Security)
 - o Outlines permitted uses and disclosures of PHI
 - o Sets safeguards for creation, reception, maintenance, and transmission of PHI
- HITECH Act of 2009
 - Notification rules for unauthorized disclosures.
- Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act of 2008 (GINA)
 - Special protections for genetic testing data
- 42 CFR Part 2 (Substance Abuse)
 - o Special protections for substance abuse (i.e. drug, alcohol) data

State Laws

- Article 27F of NY Public Health Law (HIV/AIDS)
 - Special protections for HIV/AIDs data
- NY Mental Hygiene Law
 - Special protections for mental-health related data
- NY DFS Cybersecurity Regulation (23 NYCRR 500)
 - Reporting obligations for cybersecurity breaches
- Article 39-F of NYS General Business Law (amended by NYS Shield Act of 2019)
 - Reporting obligations for unauthorized use and disclosure of data of NYS residents
- NY Public Health Law §2306
 - Protects confidentiality of STD data
- NY General Business Law Article 26, Section 394-E
 - o Protects confidentiality of abortion data

